Destek Yatirim Bankasi
Anonim Sirketi

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
TOGETHER WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

(Convenience translation of unconsolidated financial statements, related
disclosures and independent auditor’s review report originally issued in Turkish)



@ bakertilly

GURELI

41

Convenience Translation of the Report on Review of the Interim Financial Information Originally Issued in

Turkish
REPORT ON REVIEW OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INF ORMATION

To the General Assembly of Destek Yatinm Bankasi Anonim Sirketi

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated balance sheet of Destek Yatiim Bankas: Anonim Sirketi (“the

Bank”) as at 30 June 2025, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and unconsolidated statement of cash
flows for the six-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
The Bank management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying unconsolidated
interim financial information in accordance with “the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (the “BRSA”)
Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations” including the regulation on “The Procedures and Principles Regarding
Banks® Accounting Practices and Maintaining Documents™ published in the Official Gazette dated I November 2006 with

No. 26333, and other regulations on accounting records of banks published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision

Board and circulars and pronouncements published by the BRSA and Turkish Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” principles for the matters not legislated by the aforementioned regulations. Our responsibility is to express @
conclusion on this unconsolidated interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Independent Auditing Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review

of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial reporting process, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim financial information is substantially less in scope than an
independent audit conducted in accordance with Independent Auditing Standards and the objective of which is to express
an opinion on the financial statements. Consequently, a review of the interim financial information does not provide
assurance that the audit firm will be aware of all significant matters which would have been identified in an audit.

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that accompanying unconsolidated interim
financial information does not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Destek Yatmm Bankasi
Anonim Sirketi as at 30 June 2025, and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the six-month period then

ended in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations.

Emphasis of Matter

In accordance with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency on 17 February 2022 and numbered
10096, the provisions of the Bank will be replaced by the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th of the Regulation instead of TFRS 9.
Tn this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding the measurement
Destek Yatirim Bankasi Anonim Sirketi applied the provisions of article numbered 9 and sub-

of provision. Accordingly,
paragraph numbered 6 within the framework of the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the

Classification of Loans and the Provisions to be Set aside” with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision
Board.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the unconsolidated interim financial
information provided in the interim activity report included in section eight of the accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements, is not presented fairly, in all material respects, and is not consistent with the reviewed unconsolidated interim

financial statements and the explanatory notes.

Giireli Yeminli Mali Miisavirlik ve Bagimsiz Denetim Hizmetleri A.S.
An Independent Member of BAKER TILLY INTERNATIONAL

. B

istanbul, 5 August 2025
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF
THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIiRKETI
AS OF AND FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

Address : Esentepe Mah. Biiyiikdere Cad. Ferko Signature No:175 Kat:26 Sisli/istanbul
Phone 102123715500

Fax 102123715591

Website : www.destekbank.com.tr

E-mail . destekbank(@hs02 kep.tr

The unconsolidated financial report for the six-months which is prepared in accordance with the “Communique
Related to Publicly Announced Financial Statements of Banks and Explanations and Notes Related to these
Financial Statements™ as regulated by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency includes the following

sections.

e GENERAL INFORMATION

o UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¢ EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES

« INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

« INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s« OTHER EXPLANATIONS
¢ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
s EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these unconsolidated financial statements
for the six-month period which are expressed, unless indicated otherwise, in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL),
have been prepared based on the accounting books of the Bank in accordance with the Regulation on
Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards, and the related appendices and interpretations on these, and have been

independently reviewed.

Altung Kumova Ozgiir Akayoglu Kerim Tosun Ali Erdem Negeli
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board and Deputy General Financial Management and
General Manager Manager of Financial Reporting Director
Muanagement

Accounting
Hakan Cogkun Siileyman Tiiretken
Member of the Board and Audit Vice Chairman of the Board and
Committee Member Audit Committee Member
Contact information of the personnel in charge of addressing questions regarding this financial report is as

follows:

Name-Surname/Title  : Ali Erdem Negeli/Financial Management and Reporting Director
Phone 102123715500
Fax 70212371 55 91



CONTENT

SECTION ONE Page Number
General Information about the Bank

1. History of the Bank including its incorporation date, initial legal status and amendments to legal status 3
1. Explanation about the Bank's capital structure, shareholders holding directly or indirectly, collectively or mdividually,
the management and controlling power and changes in current year, if any and explanations on the controlling group of the Bank 3
I, Explanations regarding the board of directors, members of the audit committce, chief executive officer and executive vice presidents and their arcas of
responsibility and shares if any 4
IV. Information on the individual and corporate sharcholders having control shares of the Bank 4
5

V. Summary information on the Bank’s activities and nature of business
VI, Existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles to immediate trans

SECTION TWO

fer of capital between the Bank and its subsidiaries and repayment ofdebts 6

Unc lidated Financial § nts
I.  Balance Sheets B
1. Off-Balance Sheet Commmilments 1
Il Statements of Profit or Loss 11
IV. Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 12
V. Statements of Changes in Equity 13
Statements of Cash Flows 14

SECTION THREE

Explanations on Acc ing Policies
I, Explanations on basis of presentation 15
I Explanations on strategy of using financial instruments and foreign currency transactions 16
ll.  Explanations on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments 16
IV.  Explanations on inferest income and ¢xpenses 17
V. Explanations on fee and commission income and expense 17
Vi Explanations on financial assets 17
VIl Explanations on offsetting financial assets 19
Vil Explanations on sales and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions 19
[X. Explanations on non-current assets held for sale and related 1o discontinued operations and explanations on habilities related with these assels 20
X Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets 20
XI.  Explanations on property, plant and equipment 2
X1, Explanations on leases 21
X1 Explanations on provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent asscts 2
XIV, Explanations on obligations related to employee benefits 23
XV Explanations on taxation 23
XVI1  Explanations on borrowings 25
XVIL Explanations on issuance of share cerificates 25
XVII Explanations on bank drafls and letter of acceptances 25
XIX.  Explanations on government grants 25
XX Explanations on operating segments 25
XXl Explanations on other matiers 25
25

XXIl.  Explanations on subsidiaries. associutes and joint ventures

SECTION FOUR
Information Related to Financial Position and Risk Management of the Bank

1. Explanations on equily 26
1 Explanations on credit risk k)
[II.  Explanations on currency risk i3
v. Explanations on interest rate risk 36
Y Explanations on position risk of equity securities 38
VI Explanations on liquidity risk management and liquidity coverage ratio 39
VIL Explanations on leverage ratio 2
VIIL Explanations on transactions carried out on behalf of customers, items held in trust 42
1X. Explanations on risk management target and policies 43
X.  Explanations on securitisation 52
XL Explanations on markel risk 52
XIL Explanations on operating segments 53
SECTION FIVE
Information and Disclosures related to Unconsolidated Financial Statements
L Explanations and notes related to assets 55
1. Explanations and notes related to liabilities 63
[l  Explanations and notes related to off-balance sheet accounts 70
. Explanations and notes related to statement of profit or loss 75
V. Explanations and notes related to statement of changes in equity 76
VI Explanations and notes related to statement of cash flows 76
VIL.  Explanations and notes related (o risk group that the Bank belongs to 77
SECTION SIX
Other Explanations
1. Other explanations 78
Il Explanations and notes related to events after the reporting period 78
SECTION SEVEN
Independent Auditor’s Review Report
78

I, Explanations on independent auditor’s review report
1 Explanations and notes prepared by independent auditors 78

SECTION EIGHT
Explanations on interim activity report

I Assesment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager on the Interim Operations and Evaluation Regarding Subsequent Periads 749



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
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BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 AND

31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

SECTION ONE

General Information
History of the Bank including its incorporation date, initial legal status and amendments to legal
status

Destek Yatirim Bankasi Anonim Sirketi (“Destek Yatirim Bankasi™ or the “Bank™) was established in
accordance with the decision of Banking Regulation and Supervision Board on 4 February 2021 and
numbered 9412, and the decision was published in the Official Gazette on 12 July 2021 with the initial

authorized share capital amounting to TL 300.000.

The Bank carried out its operations to obtain an operating permit from the Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency in accordance with the provisions of the legislation in force following the
establishment and registration procedures. Accordingly, the Bank was authorised to start operations with
the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board on 6 January 2022 and numbered 10024.
The relevant authorisation was published in the Official Gazette on 8 January 2022 and numbered 31713.
The Bank started its operations on 25 February 2022 after the authorisation granted by the Banking

Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).
The Bank is considered as “Development and Investment Bank™ according to the classification in the
Banking Law No. 5411 and the Bank has no authority to have bank deposits and relevant transactions.

I1. Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders holding direcﬂy or indirectly,
collectively or individually, the management and controlling power and changes in current year,
if any and explanations on the controlling group of the Bank

As of 30 June 2025, the current paid-in share capital of Destek Yatirim Bankasi is amounting to TL 600
million (31 December 2024: TL 600 million). The paid-in share capital is divided into 600 million
outstanding shares each with a nominal amount of TL 1.

As of 30 June 2025, the principal shareholders and their respective shareholding rates in Destek Yatirmm
Bankasi are as follows:

Paid-in

share Unpaid
Shareholders Amount Share (%) capital share capital
Destek Finans Faktoring A.S. 599.999 99.99996  599.999.996 =
Altung Kumova 0,001 0.00001 1 -
Ozgiir Akayoglu 0,001 0.00001 1 -
Kerim Tosun 0,001 0.00001 | -
Azem Can Kumova 0,001 0.00001 | -

Total share capital 600.000 100.00  600.000.000 -
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regarding the board of directors, members of the audit committee, chief executive

Explanations
officer and executive vice presidents and their areas of responsibility and shares if any
Date of
Name and Surname Duty Education appointment
Altung Kumova Chairman of the Board Bachelor's Degree 27.03.2024
Siileyman Turetken Member of the Board, Vice Chairman of the Board, Audit Committe Member Bachelor's Degree 14.03.2023
IThami Kog¢ Member of the Board Bachelor’s Degree 25.11.2024
Hakan Cogkun Member of the Board, Audit Committe Member Master's Degree 27.03.2024
Orzgiir Akayoglu General Manager and Member of the Board Master’'s Degree 27.03.2024
Kerim Tosun Assi General Manager — Financial Management and Accounting Bachelor's Degree 04.08.2021
Levent Arslan Assistant General Manager — Operations Department Bachelor’s Degree 04.08.2021
Mustafa Ertan Tanrvakul Assistant General Manager - Treasury and Finance Department Bachelor’s Degree 06,12.2021
Tevfik Kemal Ozcan Assistant General Manager - [T Department Master's Degree 02.04.2024
Yasemin Safak Dilsen Assistant General Manager - Corporate and Commercial Banking Master's Degree 02.12.2024

Chairman of the Board of Directors Altung Kumova and Board Member and General Manager Ozgiir
Akayoglu and Assistant General Manager Kerim Tosun have a direct share of TL 1 each representing

the Bank's share capital.
The abovementioned other persons do not own any shares in the Bank.

Information on the individual and corporate shareholders having control shares of the Bank

Paid-in share Unpaid share

Shareholders Amount Share (%) capital

capital

Destek Finans Faktoring A.S. 599.999 99.9999999 599.999.996
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Summary information on the Bank’s activities and nature of business

The Bank carries out all kinds of banking transactions specified and permitted in Article 4 of the Banking
Law (except for deposit and mutual funds), including but not limited to the matters presented below,
and wide variety of economic, financial and commercial matters that authorised by the legislation. The
Bank was established to ensure operating in all matters that the legislation allows to be carried out or

executed by banks.

The Bark is authorized to implement all of the activities indicated below in accordance with the Banking
legislation, the Turkish Commercial Code, the Capital Markets Law and other laws and legislation.

e All bank transactions, and to provide short, medium and long-term secured or unsecured
cash and non-cash loans such as guarantees, endorsements or acceptances to institutions
and organizations operating in all economic sectors, to individuals, at home and abroad to
give or lend in any form and manner, to open letters of credit, to confirm opened letters of
credit, to carry out other transactions related to letters of credit and guarantees or
commercial vehicles, and to establish partnerships and joining partnership arrangements,

e Providing funds to sectors in Tirkiye and abroad, especially domestic and foreign trade,
industry, agriculture, construction, mining, public works, transportation, tourism, animal
husbandry and computer sectors, with national and international banking methods, and
supporting the financing of projects, including development, investment, build-operate-transfer
projects,

e Providing assistance and act as intermediary institution of foreign and domestic capital to
invest in Tiirkiye and to participate in established or to-be-established companies, and to
provide consultancy on these matters,

e Providing short, medium and long-term loans for pledges, mortgages and other collaterals,

o Ensuring all kinds of industrial and commercial transactions, and, to participate in persons
and organizations established in accordance with private law and public law operating in
these matters, to establish partnerships, to acquire shares and other securities of public law
and private law legal entities that have been established or will be established including

buying and selling securities and bonds,

e Implementing capital or money market transactions on different securities in nature, in
cooperation with national/international organizations when necessary, and to participate in
companies established/to be established for this matter,

e Providing guarantees and intermediating in all kinds of leasing transactions as a party,
including domestic and international transactions,

e Ensuring wide variety of factoring transactions in the manner authorised by the legislation
at home and abroad, to provide financing related to these, to provide consultancy services
on financial matters on a sector and subject of matter basis,

e Ensuring derivative transactions, all kinds of foreign exchange transactions including
forward foreign exchange buying/selling, reverse repurchase agreements and transactions,
and to carry out transactions in the stock exchanges,

o Trading gold, silver and other precious metals in established and future precious me
metal exchanges,



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 AND

31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

e Providing banking services to its customers in Tiirkiye and abroad through information
technology such as call center, telephone banking, electronic banking, electronic
commerce and internet, and providing direct banking services,

e Establishing relationships with domestic and foreign banks, carrying out all kinds of
banking transactions with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye and domestic and

foreign banks,

e Ensuring operations in Turkish Lira and foreign currencies in all national and international
money markets,

e Acquisition of properties in Tiirkiye and abroad, to transfer, assign, mortgage and restrict
these with other real rights, and lease them partially or completely and to dispose of them
in a way that can establish all kinds of personal or real rights and obligations,

e Obtaining and removing mortgages in one's favour in order to ensure the security or
collection of receivables, to arrange mortgage agreements, to establish and remove
commercial mortgages, to conclude lease agreements,

e Issuing capital market instruments, making all kinds of legal dispositions including pledge,
and establishing or removing pledges in its favor,

o Ensuring insurance agency transactions in Tirkiye and abroad,

e Providing securities’ intermediary activities for which banks are authorized by the Capital
Markets Law, to establish, operate and manage securities’ investment funds,

e Ensuring capital market activities in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Capital
Markets Law,

s Ensuring trading of treasury bills, bonds and other securities issued or to be issued by the
Treasury, capital market instruments, securities and other capital market instruments issued
or to be issued by public and private legal entities, including the Public and Private
Partnerships, and making all kinds of legal dispositions and pledges,

e Ensuring money market operations and capital market activities authorised by the Capital
Markets Board and relevant regulations, including as the intermediary of institutions

authorized to carry out these activities,

e Providing financing to public and private sector organizations, financing to mergers and
acquisitions, company restructurings, privatization, public offering, issuing securities,
equity, share and stock evaluations and transfers, feasibility activities and sector research
and trading activities, and providing consultancy services regarding aforementioned

matters,

e Ensuring national and international banking transactions authorized by the relevant
legislation.
VL. The existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles on the immediate transfer of equity between
the Bank and its subsidiaries or reimbursement of liabilities

There are no existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles to the immediate transfer of equitys
repayment of debts between the Bank and its subsidiary Destek Menkul Degerler Anonimg8irkgti.
y L]
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Reviewed Audited
current period prior period
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Notes TL FC Total TL FC Total

ASSETS (5-h

4.246.150 1405890  5.652.040  2.719.381 B5B.450  3.587.831

L FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net)
1.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents 260.102  1.292.515  1.552.617 1.374.766 767239 2.142.005
L1 Cash and Cash Equivalents and the CBRT €3] 1619 933.162 956.781 2,856 567.183 570,039
1.1.2 Banks 4) 250.483 339.353 505830 771110 200.050 971,166
1.1.3 Receivables from Money Markets - - - H00 800 - 00,800
1.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 2) - - - - - -
1.2.1 Government debt securities -
1.2.2 Share certificates -
1.2.3  Other financial assets =
1.3 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive

Income 5) 3794.500 100,480 3894980 4067467 88.756 1.155.923
1.3.1 CGrovernment debt securities 3.794.500 1004800 3K94.980 1020399 B8.756  1.118.155
1.3.2 Share certificates - = - - - -
1,33 Other financial assets * : - 37,768 - 37.768
L4 Derivative Financial Asset [&]] 191.548 12.895 204.443 187448 2455 289.903
1.4.1 Derivative financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

191.548 12.895 204 443 287448 2455 289,903

142  Derivative financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

IL. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (Net)
7.268.216 11365400 18.633.616 4608600 7.434.295 12.132.895

11 Loans (6} 7.268.216 11365400 18.633.616  4.698.600 7.434.295 12.132.895
2.2 Lease Receivables i1} @ u - s - E
1.3 Factoring Receivables 5 & p s = &
24 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost (7 " - - - - -
241 Government debt securities . - # =
142 Other financial assets L = 5 = . -
25 Non-performing receivables = = % ’ : =
16 Provisions for Expected Losses (-) L 3 z " -
111, NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) (16) - - - -
31 Held for Sale - - z
32 Discontinued Operations . . g . - -
v. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, SUBSIDIARIES AND 1.300.000 - 1300.000 300.000 - 300.000

JOINT VENTURES
4.1 Associates (Net) 8) - - = =
4.1.1 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method - -
412 Unconsolidated 5 = - . % 3
42 Subsidiaries (Net) (%) 1.300.000 - L3000 300.000 - 300.000
4.2.1 Unconsolidated Finaneial Subsidiaties 1.300.000 - 1300000 300,000 - 300000
422 Unconsolidated Non-Financial Subsidiaries 2 = 5 . - .
43 Joint Ventures (Net) (1 - - - - - -
43.1 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method . x g 5
4322 Unconsolidated = = = = < .
V., PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Net) (12) 140,142 - 140.142 93,957 - 93.957
VI INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 13 149497 - 149.497 121.139 - 121,139
6.1 Goodwill . . i : : .
6.2 Other 149.497 - 149497 121.139 = 121.139
VI.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Net) (14) - - : - -
VIIL CURRENT INCOME TAX ASSETS (15}
IX. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (15) - z - - - -
X. OTHER ASSETS (17 689.138 37833 L06T472 180.763 108,699 289462

TOTAL ASSETS 13.793.143 13.149.624  26.942.767 8.123.840  8.401.444 16.525.284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Reviewed Audited
current period ___prior period
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Notes FC Tortal FC Total
LIABILITIES (5-10) TL TL
1. DEPOSITS ) : = . - N 3
IL. BORROWINGS (4) - 9237969  9.237.969 - 5.047.682  5.047.682
1l MONEY MARKETS (3 408.744 200.264 609.008 4.273 173.841 178.114
Iv. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) (4) 875.116 6.733.353  7.608.469 A52.983 4188825  4.5TLROR
4.1 Bills 476.273 - 476.273 253.828 - 253828
4.2 Asset-backed securities < - - = = -
413 Bonds 308843 £.733,353 713219 179155 4.188.825 4.317.980
¥. FUNDS @) §77.247 1.929.251  2.806.500 523,741 2.430.072  1.953.813
5: Borrower Funds 877.247 1,920,253 2.806.500 523741 2430072 2933813
5.2 Other = = - . - =
V1. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - - % = - =
VIL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (2) 43.692 T1.389 115.081 44.173 1.069 45,242
T.1 Derivative liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 43.692 71.389 115.081 44,173 1.069 45.242
7.2 Derivative liabilities at fair value through other
comprehensive income . - = = = =
VIIL FACTORING LIABILITIES = = = - - -
1X. LEASE LIABILITIES (6) 67.595 - 67.595 21.638 - 21.638
X. PROVISIONS (8) 218,509 183.565 402.074 147.419 118.795 166,214
10.1 General Provisions 207.623 183,565 391.188 136.732 118.795 255527
10.2 Provisions for Restructuring - - - - - -
10.3 Provisions for Employee Benefits B.667 = B.667 7.509 - 7.599
104 Insurance Technical Provisions (Net} - - - - - -
10.5 Other Frovisions 2219 . 2219 3.088 - 3.088
XI. CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (9) 126.001 - 226.001 208.878 - 208.878
XIL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (9) 24.641 - 24.641 57.157 - 57.157
X1 LIABILITIES FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (1 - - - - = o
13.1 Held for Sale - H s 5 . .
13.2 Discontinued Operations - = = 3 i s
X1V, SUBORDINATED DEBT (11) - 412.351 412351 - - -
14.1 Loans - - . - A %
14.2 Other Debt Instruments - 412.351 412351 - - -
XV, OTHER LIABILITIES (5) 1.669.580 517.239  2.186.819 109.911 196.551 406,462
XVL EQUITY 12) 3234074 12085  3.246,259 2.757.68% 10.588  2.768.276
16.1 Paid-in Share Capital 600.000 - 600000 600,000 - a00.000
16.2 Capital Reserves = @ = g ¥ -
1621 Share premium - § = - * "
1622 Share Cancellation Profits _ . . - - -
1623 Other Capilal Reserves - - - - - -
16.3 Other comprehensive i oF expenses not to be reclassified to
profit or loss 884 . 884 (550) - (550)
16.4 Other comprehensive income or expenses (o be reclassified to profit
or loss (7.146) 12.085 4939 (17.016) 10,588 (7.328)
16.5 Profit Reserves 108.807 - 108807 51.25% - 51.259
16.5.1 Legal Reserves 108.807 - 108.807 51,259 - 51.259
16.52  Stattory Reserves - i s - - -
16.53  Extraordinary Reserves - - - - - -
16.54  Other Profit Reserves n = i = B .
16.6 Profit or Loss 2.531.629 . 2,531.629 2124895 - 2.124 895
16.6.1  Prior years' profits or losses 2.067.347 - 2067347 973928 - 973.928
464 282 - 464,282  1.150.967 - 1.150,967

16.62  Profit for the period

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7645299 19.297.468 26.942.767 4.357.861 12.167.423 16.525.284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONiM SIRKETI

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 AND 31 DECEMBER 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
Reviewed Audited
current period prior period
30 Jupe 2025 31 December 2024
L FC

MNotes FC Total
(5- 1IN TL 1,

Tatal

Off-halance sheet commitments (F-I+ILE) 34.507.696 22962076 57.469.772 1288507 21098 124 52.386.R21
Guarantees and warranties (L3 BHE 613 1HL6SD £.494.263 4614467 267617 4,682 154
Legters of guaranioe 6303613 1HLESD 6,494 263 4614467 267617 LRI
Guarantess subjoct 1o stake tender law 529 329 1695 184961 L& A5G
Guaranters mven for foreign Lrade opurations - - - - -

Chher lotiers of gnarmniec f.303 054 191650 6,493,734 4612772 52656 ERE h
Bark accepiiness - - - - >
gt lettor of noceptance - -

Other hank Accoptances _

Letiers of eredit - B

Documentary letters of crelin - -

Other lefters of credit - -

Prefinancing givim iis guardotes - -

Encorsements = =

Enclorsements 10 the Ceurral Bank of thie Republic of Turkiye - -

Other endrrsement E =

Secuntics isaye purchise gusrsiive - -

Facioning guarantecs

Onher guaramioe

Other bill of guaramiees - - - - -
Commitments (14» 14.294.537 3652679 17.947,216 9.914.309 4.169.059 14.083.368
Irrevncable commitnents 629408 3652679 7.282.147 4.172.03% 4165054 E.341.0984
Assed purchase ani sale commitments 1629408 3652679 7182147 41720389 4165060 341098
Deposit purchase and siles commutnen s H Y o
Share capilal conmitmints i asociates wd subsicdianes - - . >

Loan granting commitmeis = o =

Spcuniies i 5ue ke pe contiuiments - - . .

Commitments ToF reserve deposit requiremients - - . -

Commitmants for cheq e E - . -

Tax and fund liabilities from export comumiii i : 5 g

Commitments for crudit Card limits - -
Commitments for crodit cards and banking services priamotions E -
Receivables from short sale cometments of imarkatable securities
Payables for short sale commmments of marketahle secuntics
Other imevncable comouitments

Revocable commitins

Feyocable lom graniing commitcs

Other revireahle comuitments - - - z
Derrvative financial Instruments n 13.909.546 19.118.747 33.028.293 16,759,521 16.661.54% 13421369
Derivative finanetal insiruments for bedging purposcs - - - - -
Transactions for fair value hedge - - -

Transactions for cash Mow hedpe - - -

Trasactions for fore g net wvestment hedpe - z - -
Trading ransacuons 13504 546 19118747 33.028.293 16,759,821 16461548 33421369
Frrward foregn curency buvisell 10261907 G.724.668 19986575 15,545 444 15,177 260 11.126.704
Forwani forGgn currency transactions. buy 445 ET4 535145 10.197.370 5911124 6,544, 554 15855708
Frrwan| foregn cumency trsactions-sell 5416033 4373172 TR 205 7038 320 $.232676 15.270.996
Swap transactions redaied (o foreign cumency and interes! rales 1.5RE. D189 TAOT.O3Y o995 128 10377 L4384 258 2.204.665
Foreign cimency swap-buy 97642 3460697 4454339 1,143 546 1143846
Frretgr aumency swap-sell S0 44T 3545342 4,536,789 810377 340,442 1150819
Interest mie swap-bay : - =
Interest m1c swap-sel - > - - -
Forcign eumency, interest rie aud secarmies oplions -
Foreign cumency oplions-bay . -

Faoretgn cumency options-sell - - =
[mtevest mte options-buy - -
[r1erest mane cpiions-sell

Securities options-bay . =
Secunnes pions-sell - . - A £ =
Fereign cumency fulures 2055 550 1987040 A6 590 = -
Foreign currency fulures by - 1987041 19870400 - -
Fereign curmency fuures sell 200550 2.059.550 - -
[riterest mie utures :

Tmerest rate futures- buy

Inerest raie futures-sell - - -
126 her E - - - -
B. Custody and pledges received (IV+HV V) T4.665.429 14.154,165 HERIG594 56,850,722 10019965 6, A70LEET
. Ttems held in custody 4825748 6851534 11377302 1790218 J9RT.THG 5778014
41 Custower fund and portiohio balances - * = - -
4.2 Investment securitics held m cusiody $74.125 &TITTY 73455902 TAL02 1916974 4.658.056
41 Cheques received for colleciion 213.837 - 223837 44126 - 44.126
44 Conmercial potes recenved for collechon - 3 - . .
48 Other asses received for collection - - - - -
4h Assets recetviad fur public offenoy . = . = .
4.7 Onther iterns under custody. - . = 2 a .
4.4 Custivtians 3TETTRG 9777 J.BUT.S63 1AMIS A0 HR22 10755832
V. Pledges received 0139681 7302611 TTA2292 55,060,504 6032168 61192673
51 WMarkesable secunities

5.2 Guarant ot mes

53 Commerlny

54 Warrants - - - -

5.5 Properties . - - : -
56 Onher pledged items 710,139,681 7.302.611 774421972 55 (60,504 6,032 169
L Pletged tbets-depository - - - =
Vi Accepted ind It anr - - =

>

e T T T T T T Tt

10665069 [LG65.069 5942 2T = 5.742.270
1LA6S (M 10663.069 5.742.2T0 - 5.742.270

61002673

Total off-balance sheet commitments (4+H) 109.173.125
iass

37116241 146.259.366 HH.139.319 ETNEERE:] 119.257 508

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 AND 2024

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)
Reviewed
current Unreviewed Reviewed prior Unreviewed prior
period corrent period period period
: Notes 1 January- 1 April- 1 January- 1 April-
Income and expense items {5-1V} 30 June 2025 30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2024
1. INTEREST INCOME 1y 2.383.349 1.401.133 837.328 T36.541
1.1 Interest on Loans 1.923.279 1.103.941 477,577 392773
12 Interest Received from Reserve Deposits # - =
1.3 Interest Received from Banks 49.894 £8.075 111.539 110.864
1.4 Lnterest Received from Money Market Transactions 250.165 174.003 21.862 20923
1.3 Interest Received from Marketable Securities Portfolio 151.614 100.270 226.077 211766
L.5.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Los - - - -
152 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 151614 100,270 226,077 211.766
153 Financial Assets al Amortised Cost - - - -
1.6 Finance Lease Income z - - -
1.7 Other Interest Income £.397 4 824 273 215
IL INTEREST EXPENSES (-) 2) B74.435 529.106 265.296 181.794
21 Interest on Deposits = - - -
22 Interest on Funds Barrowed 230457 125.821 14.304 12.949
2.3 [nterest expense on money market ransactions 101.010 80,550 29.891 18,795
2.4 Interest on Securities [ssued 342576 198.492 132,806 G6.08%
p A Interest on Leasss 12.665 T.17% 044 G4
16 Other Imerest Expenses 187.727 117.064 87,351 53.018
. NET INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSE (1- 1) 1.508.914 B72.027 572032 554,747
v, NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOMEEXPENSE 41.531 27.508 B.645 3.7585
4.1 Fees and Commissions Received 62.342 39,403 19.107 12.245
4.1.1 Non-cash Loans 39.731 21.583 15,380 9.438
4.1.2 Onher (12) 22611 17.820 3.727 1810
42 Fees and Commissions Paid 20811 11.898 10462 8490
421 Non-cash Loans 5292 2641 3477 2.565
422 Other (12} 15519 9.287 GA85 5925
V. DIVIDEND INCOME (&) . - i 4
V1. OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (Net) (4) {436.986) (353.381) 535.544 (299.432)
6.1 Giains/Losses on Securities 113.674 £0.073 79.274 45.052
6.2 Derivative Financial Transactions Gmns/Losses (166.319) (249.314) 168.282 [63.696)
6.3 Foreign Exchange Gaing/ Losses {384.341) (164 140) 287988 [269.788)
VIL OTHER OPERATING INCOME (%) 41.692 3.024 1.772 (11
VIIL GROSS PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (IIIHIVHVAVIHVID 1.155.151 9175 1L.117.993 268.736
. PROVISIONS FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (-} {6) 135.661 74.303 76.588 51.443
. ¢} PERSONNEL EXPENSES (-) 157.681 82.761 61,830 41.102
XL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) M 112892 i), 346 £1.929 37.564
XIL NET OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (VITI-TX-X-X1-X1I) 748.917 331765 917.646 138.627
XIIL SURPLUS WRITTEN AS GAIN AFTER BUSINESS COMBINATION - - - -
XIv. PROFIT/LOSS FROM EQUITY METHOD OF SUBSIDIARIES - - - -
XV, NET MONETARY POSITION GAIN/LOSS - - - -
XVL PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 748,917 331,765 917.646 138,617
(XTI +XVT) &
XVIL PROVISION FOR TAXES ON INCOME FROM CONTINUING 284.635 120.383 276,441 75,342
OPERATIONS (+) I
7.1 Current Tax Provision 317.765 154,402 2216863 £9.282
Expense effect of deferred tax (+) (33130} (34.019) 54578 (13.940)
17.3 Income effect of defemed tax (-) - - - -
XVIIL NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XVIIXVII) (1 464,282 211382 641.205 63,285
XX, INCOME FROM DISCONTINUEDR OPERATIONS - - - -
19.1 Income from assets held for sale . -
19:2 Gain on sale of associates, subsidiaries and joim ventures - = - -
19.3 Other income from discontinucd operations - - = -
XX. EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) o =
2001 Eapenses on assets held for sale i - - -
20.2 Losses on sale of associates, subsidianes and joint ventures
203 Onher expenses from discontinued operations - - - %
XXL PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
(XX - XXT) ") -
XXIL TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (£) (7 - - -
2.1 Current tas provision - - - -
212 Expense effect of deferred tax (+) - - -
23 Income effect of deferred tax {-) 3 - g
XXIIL NET PROFIT/ LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XXTE=XXII) (10 - - = -
XXIV. NET PROTIT/LOSS (XVIII+XXIII) (1 464.282 211.382 641,205 63,285
Earnings per share 0.77380 035230 | OREEE 010548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

11




cl

SIUMNUMBIS [RIDURNL Palepl{osucoun 3say) jo ued [eigaul ue uuog saiou Futlurdwoosr ay

1809 (11+D FTIWOONI FAISNAHAUIWOD TV.LOL it
E8O°LLY

tZlrl SSOT] JQ) 0L O], PAYISER[ay] o 0 swa] aasudyaadwo)) oy o Buneoy saxe)  9pT
(Lsz6)

= = §50° J0 JJ0L] LU0 O PALISER[DGY aq (1M 1) awnau] Aatsuaaad oy g0 JO Swa| 0§77

- = suonesadoy uSialog n suBuUnsaAN] 12N JO $IBPO} U0 SASSO)SMED) $TT

¥ - safpay Smo[) SED U0 SISEO|SUIED) €77

(8L0'LP) P Ll Auoduf amsudyde ) 100 YAN0UY | N[k A J1E] 18 51985 [RIDURLL] JO GONEDJISSED [0 UONEN[EAR! U0 (sasso)suienry 0T

- S20UAIRIYIP UONR[SUEY AdudLND) 1 TT

($56°TE) s50] 40 Jgoad 0] payIsse[aad aq of amoedm asisuayaidimod g0 4
LTt

(9%} $807 J0) 101 O palIsse[ady 2 01 10N Swa] assusgasdwos) 12q0 o) Suneay saxe )], N
(519)

- SS0°] () JLI02 01 PALISER]DAY aF 01 JON Awoou] aasuagadine) 1m0 Jo S| Isp0. v1T

L8T SUR| IAUE] PRULS(] JO STUAWINSLIWY] UQ (SASSO[) SWEDY  ¢°[°C
arl'E
- 51985y JqUiueiu] JO UOHEN[EAY UG (Sasso[} sweD)  T'1'T

- = wamdinbyg pug juelg ‘Auadosg JO uonenjeasy uo (s3550]) suieny L'z

10T 5501 20 Jijodd 0) PaLSSEa o Jou Jwodul aalsuayasdwed sayj0 1'z
PEF'L

(FsL77E) TAWOINI AAISNAHIUAINOD HIHLO Rl
10L°€l

SOT'IFY (01HAd FHL 304 (SS01) LIA0Ud 1
IRTHIF

FT0T aung g STOT 2unp g

-Adunuep | -faenuep |

poad Jorad pamaaay poLidd JuaInd parmanady

("pareaipul 3SIAUIYIO SSIUN (7] [,..) BU'] YSIAN] JO Spuesnoy) ur passardxa am sjunowry)
FZOT ANV STOZ ANNC 0 AAANT SAOTHAd WIHALNI AHL HO04 HIWOONI HAISNHHIHdIWOD HAHLO ANV SSOT 40 L1404d 40 SINAWALVLS

LLANHIS IWINONY ISVINVE WIILLVA M41S4d

HSIMUNL NI GANSSTATIVNIDI-O SINFIWALVLIS TVIONVNIA A3LVATTOSNOIN AHL 40 NOLLVISNVHL HONJINIANOD



el

"SIURWIALRIS [BISURUL] PRIRPI[OSUOIUN 959Y) JO 1ed [eiFa)ul ue uuo] sajou FurAueduwioose ay |

———

BSTOFLE THIFOF LPULMIE L8301 £ GEGT - . L] ¥ = = = 000000 (IX+X+ AT+ poviad 2 jo pug
= - - - - - - E > ) 2D £ 11
LLeansI 1l alrgsnn BESLE = = . = = . - : sanoea ela) o) smgsuell T
E i . - : ’ - - - - - BOUTLISIP puapisgg 1711
- Woe'0sl'l)  IFEel BIELE - £ & - = = = = =) = UBINGEISP 1g0ad X
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - Annba x
ut safued 1200 YEnoag (5L319p jRsEILIN]
. . . - - - = - - - - - - - WAp paRUIpIOGRE X
- - — - = = = = = = = e = - SPutg Fguadsauey LA
% = - & = = - - - = = o * = Duassgpp waussn{pe uopeyul pndes panssp 1A
= = - o - = - = - = - - - - SHLIEXD (MU Yanoay) aseaadm jedey 1A
= = - - = - = = = - = = - - YSE W aseanyu ryde;y ‘A
E86'LLY T ¥or = T = Lozl * . FEFL = = < = = awnug aapsuagaad wod oy Al
QLTRILT L96°051°1 BIOTLO o8’ ls = (RIEL) T T (oss) = - = = D00 (1E+1) 23uBpEg May m
= - - - - - - . - - - sasjod Summonoe w sadueya o 12909 Tt
- . - - - - - - - - F sidua funumease jo ey i
- = = - 2 - - - = - * - = " £ SVL M SUBI0IE W) Siaunsnfpy n
9LTReLT LGS0l ST0'ELD 65TLS ] e * - 10ss) 5 = > = 000009 pojad au) Jo Bujuuidag g 1w 2uEEg g
STOT Aunf (f —AJENuEr |
poad yualing pasaisey
st S0z 8tele 6stis - — Gweil) - - [fA) - z - : 00009 XX +AIH1D popd oy jo puy
x > - - - - : i ? 5 , 2 - BRO - 1]
LeLerie) LE9'LER L9 3 = £ - - : . s3I [BED] ) SWJSURLL 711
= 3 5 > = = = * = ) uonunqLusp puapiaNy . 111
v (5L ren) LEULER Ly E = = % -} ¥ = = % = uennqEsPINed  IX
= ~ = i = = = = n - - - - - Aynba X
Ul SPBuEYD Y0 yinody) (ISE2INp)RsEIIIU]
- x = = - - - - - - - = = = QPp puEmploqng - X1
- - - - - - . - - - - * - - SPUGH AGIIBADG) 1A
= - = . B - c - - - - - - - Buaspp waugsaipe voneyul pudes panssp 1A
=] E = = = - - - - - - - - = SAAIDEA UL yEnoag dseaaduw jEnde ) A
000°05T - - - - - - . - - 3 5 - W0005T used ugasEaOm Endey A
ISFROY SOTIY9 " 2 i (S56°TE) z = 07 . s * . - Amoduy assuagasdwod jpoy, Al
IBS 68T SLEFEE LLT9R sy - L9961 = = [(%4] - - - - 005§ ([1+1) Puggeq Moy LI
- - . - - - - - - snaud Sununoooe u sadueya jo wagy s
: : 3 ~ E - = < = . - - - S10012 TNTUNII2E JO 123745 1T
- - - = & - - - - - - - - s 8 SVL YIM 3UEPINIIE W Sjuaunsnfpy "I
195 P6E°1 SLEPEG 1LT98 IS = LOWGT = 2 {£Ly) E - - - 05T posad 2 Jo SupngBag 3y 18 s3uBEy l
FZOT 2unp O ~Asenuer |
poyed 1oprd pamaiaay
paLad a1 SS0]), ainoaT 550] awaau [EETEEETTIT EITET sueyd snpdans Saniasar  wgoad  wnnmead  (Ejdes
30 J0ag Fou wedg a0 jyoad 01 pagssepad aasuayasduing sagioe UDBSUEL) oad o) pag|sseal WAUAG pRugap uonEnjEial gase ey de WORBPIUEY Iy gy
poysad sopg EURORTTE TR AT YAnong anfEs JTEj B SISTE UL A0 10 $a)) Jwoiu O SJUALUIINEE IS TURLINI-UG Y] A3 RITATITRNRS] u-prad
samuayaadwos sy JRPUEUY U (sassofhsuieEd aapuagaaduns un (53550]) SUR) EYTTT
J0 SIUNOWIT PUEMIENNE  UOHEIISSEIL ECUILET
puE 550 10 1g0ad o) A0/ UDEER|EAIY

SIUNOWE PAIEMWNRE
PUT S50f J0

Jyvad o) payssepas
a0 pou poyiaw Kinba

PAYBSER 3G 01 POy
Aymba sy Susn 10
PAAUNOIIE (5550[)SUED

Bugdpay moy Huisn 10} pIUNGIIE

YSED 0§ SPUIUNSIAN Jo SPUFYEA ALY

AW IAfFHAGRIdUI0D 10 atmoon)

23140 0 SAIEYS) U0 ansuayaadmod g0
J0 SIBYR) YO

=50y 10 yuead v} payisEpPaI g 0y swa]

$50] 10 1014 03 DAY [SSERI] 34 0) 40U SWal)

("pa1eaipur asIMISYI0 SSA[UN (7] ],.) B4 ] YSDDO] JO SPUBSNOY] Ul passasdxa 2ue sjunowy)
PZ0T ANV SZ0Z ANNC 0E AAAND SAOTHAd WIHALNI AHL HOA4 ALINOA NI STONVHD 40 SINAWALVLS

LLAMYIS WINONV ISVNVE WINILVA MALSdd
HSDIMNL NI GA0SST ATTVNIOTHO SINTFWALY LS TVIONVNIA QALVAITOSNOINN THL 40 NOLLVISNVHL ADNTINAANOD



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 AND 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

Reviewed current  Reviewed prior
period period

1 January - 1 January -

30 June 2025 30 June 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

AL

1.1 Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilitics 381.537 773.254
1.1.1 Interest recetved 2.307.587 893,360
1.1.2 Interest paid (803.192) (265.296)
1.1.3 Dividend received - -
1.1.4 Fees and commissions received - -
1.1.5 Other income - -
1.1.6 Collections from previously written-off loans and other receivable - -
1.1.7 Cash payments to personnel and service suppliers (158.667) (62.400)
1.1.8 Taxes paid (284.635) (276.441)
1.1.9 Other (679.556) 484.031
1.2 Changes in operating assets and linbilities subject to banking operations (1.164.571) (794.254)
1.2.1 Net (increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - ®
122 Net (increase) decrease in due from banks - -
1.2.3 Net (increase) decrease in loans (6.264.125) (3.774.394)
124 Net (increase) decrease in other assets (1.096.839) (148.573)
1.2.5 Net increase (decrease) in bank deposits - -
1.2.6 Net increase (decrease) in other deposits - -
1.2.7 Net increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - =
1.2.8 Net increase (decrease) in borrowings 4.022.346 2.078.771
1.2.9 Net increase (decrcase) in matured payables - -
1.2.10 Net increase (decrcase) in other liabilities 2.174.047 1.045.942
L. Net ¢ash from banking operations (783.034) (25.000)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1I. Net eash from investing activities (3.587.630) (615.345)
21 Cash paid for the purchase of associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures (1,000,000} (300.000)
22 Cash obtained from the sale of associates, subsidiarics and joint ventures = B
2. Cash paid for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset (62.438) (48.248)
24 Cash obtained from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset - (1.472)
25 Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (2.496.534) (252.449)
2.6 Cash obtained from the sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - -
2.7 Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at amortised cost - -
28 Cash obtained from sale of financial assets at amortised cost - -
29 Other (28.358) (13.176)
&l CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Net cash flows from financing activities 3.376.987 2,102,322
31 Cash inflows from borrowings and securities issued 3.376.987 1.852.322
32 Cash outflows from berrowings and securities issued -
33 Equily instruments issued - 250,000
34 Dividends paid - -
35 Payments for lease liabilities - -
36 Other (+/-) - -
Iv. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (+/-) - -
V. Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (I+T1+1I1+IV) (993.677) 1.461.877
VL. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 1.670.394 453.079
VIL Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period (V+VI) 676.717 1.915.056

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statem
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(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

SECTION THREE
Explanations on Accounting Policies

L Basis of presentation

1. Preparation of the financial statements and the accompanying notes in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards and the Communique on Principles and Procedures on the Accounting Practice

and Documentation of Banks

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents™ (“Regulation”) related with Banking Law numbered
5411 published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006 and other regulations related to
ing records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(the “BRSA™) and circulars and interpretations published by BRSA (together referred as BRSA Accounting and
Reporting Legislation) and in case where a specific regulation is not made by BRSA, Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and (referred as “Turkish Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations™ or
“Reporting Standards™) put into effect by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (the

“FOA™).
The amounts in the unconsolidated financial statements and relevant notes expressed in thousands of Turkish
Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.

reporting principles on account

| statements have been prepared in accordance with the

the Financial Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes
9 numbered 30673.

The accompanying unconsolidated financia

“Communique amending the Communique on
to be Announced to Public by Banks™ published in the Official Gazette dated 1 February 201

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis
except for the financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Within the framework of the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans
and the Provisions to be Set aside with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board dated 21
December 2017 and numbered 7650, the provisions of the Bank will be replaced by the 10th, 1 1th, 13th and
15th of the regulation instead of TFRS 9 considering the authorisation obtained from BRSA on 21 February
2022. In this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding
the measurement of provisions. In accordance with the authorisation received from the BRSA, the Bank
calculates its provisions not with the expected credit losses under TFRS 9, but within the scope of the 10th,

[1th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation until indicated otherwise.

As of 30 June 2025, the unconsolidated balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments are presented
comparatively with the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024. The unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, profit or loss and other comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes
in equity and unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the interim period ended on 30 June 2025 are presented
comparatively with the unconsolidated financial statements for the interim period ended on 30 June 2024.

2. Accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements

iples adopted when preparing financial statements are in accordance
BRSA concerning accounting and
with the provisions of TAS/TFRS

The accounting policies and valuation princ
with the legislation, communiqué, explanation and circular released by

financial reporting, and, for matters which are not regulated by the foregoing,
(together “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation).

The amendments and any changes in transition to TAS/TFRS, do not have a material influence on the Bank's
nt

accounting policies, financial position and performance, effective from 1 January 2023. The Bank manageme:
estimated that the amendments to TAS and TFRS, which have been published but not entered i Topat My
the date of the financial statements, will not have a material influence on the Bank's acgbunti

financial position and performance.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

L Basis of presentation (continued)

2. Accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

In accordance with the announcement disclosed by the Public Oversight, Accounting, and Auditing Standards
Authority (the “POA™) on 23 November 2023, it was decided that entities applying TFRS must implement the
“TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ in their financial statements starting from the
31 December 2023 annual reporting period. In addition, entities authorized to regulate and supervise within
their respective nature of business were granted the flexibility to set different transition dates for the application
of TAS 29 provisions. Within this scope, under the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(the “BRSA™) on 12 December 2023, and numbered 10744, banks, as well as financial leasing, factoring,
financing, savings financing, and asset management companies, are exempted from applying the inflation
adjustments required by TAS 29 in their financial statements on 31 December 2023. Furthermore, in accordance
with the decision dated 11 January 2024, and numbered 10825, these entities are required to implement inflation
accounting commencing from 1 January 2025. Accordingly, the Bank has not applied the inflation accounting
required under TAS 29 in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements as of and for the interim period
ended 30 June 2025. The relevant accounting policies and valuation principles are disclosed between Notes 1I

and XXIII presented below.
I1. Explanations on strategy of using financial instruments and foreign currency transactions

1. The Bank’s strategy on financial instruments

The Bank's core business covers all banking services and investment banking activities, excluding debt
financing, foreign trade finance, structured finance, treasury products and services, and accepling deposits,

offered to Corporate and Commercial Banking customers.

The Bank started its operations on 25 February 2022 and approximately 12% of the Bank's resources consist of
equity as of the balance sheet date. The Bank's main objective is to diversify its funding sources over time. In
line with this objective, both expanding the investor base and diversifying the borrowing markets have been
prioritised. The domestic bond/bill market is targeted to be the primary funding source of the Bank in the first
months. In addition, Borsa Istanbul Debt Securities Market, Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye (the
“CBRT”) Open Market Operations Market, Takasbank Money Market and Interbank repo/deposit market will
be used as funding sources. The efforts are being realised to utilise funding opportunities especially from foreign
banks with relatively long-term maturities. Swap transactions will be used to manage the liquidity of different

currencies.

As of the balance sheet date, the share of loans granted in the Bank’s assets is 69%, and there is a liquid balance
sheet structure in which the Banks resources are used in short and medium-term financial instruments.

2. The Bank’s explanations on foreign currency transactions

The Bank adopted an asset-liability balance management strategy aimed at adverse the effects of risks and
increasing profits by balancing the resources and assets it uses in terms of risk. The main goal of asset-liability
management is to keep the Bank's liquidity risk, exchange rate risk and credit risk within certain limits; to
increase profitability and strengthen the Bank's equity and capital.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated with the exchange rates announced

by the CBRT prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such valuations are recognised

in the statement of profit or loss under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses™, except for valuation
P £ ge g P .
erforming

differences arising from foreign currency participations, subsidiaries and foreign currency non-

loans.
Explanations on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments

statements.
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Liabilities and receivables arising from derivatives are recognised in the off-balance sheet accounts based on
the contractual amounts.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments (continued)

Derivative transactions are carried at fair value in the periods following their recognition. In accordance with
their classification, derivative transactions are presented in “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss” or “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income™ if their
fair value is positive. On the other hand, derivative transactions are presented in “Derivative Financial Liabilities
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss™ or “Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income™ if their fair value is negative. Differences in the fair value of derivative transactions at
fair value of derivative financial assets are recognised in profit or loss are recognised under profit or loss from
derivative financial transactions in the operating profit/loss in the statement of profit or loss.

The Bank has no embedded derivative products determined by seperation from the main contract or derivative

products for hedging purposes.

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has derivative financial assets amounting to TL 204.443 and derivative financial
liabilities amounting to TL 115.081 classified as “Derivative financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™.

Explanations on interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis by using the
effective interest method periodically. The Bank amortizes the fees and transaction costs included in the
calculation of the effective profit rate over the estimated useful life of the financial instrument when applying

the internal return.
Explanations on fee and commission income and expense
Revenue arising from banking operations are recognised as income in the period they are collected.

Loan fees and commission expenses paid to other institutions and organizations regarding financial liabilities
and inchding transaction costs are considered as a part of the interest expense of the relevant loan.

Fees and commission income/expenses collected/paid regarding any forward transaction are recognised on an
accrual basis.
Revenue provided through contracts or through consultancy and project services related to transactions such as

asset acquisitions, partnership purchases or sale for a third real or legal person, are recognised as income during
the completion of the transactions, the provision of the service or when they are collected, depending on their

nature.

Explanations on financial assets

The Bank categorizes its financial assets as “Fair Value Through Profit or Loss”, “Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income” or “Measured at Amortized Cost”. Such financial assets are recognized or
derecognized according to TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 3 Issued for classification and measurement of
the financial instruments published in the Official Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 January 2017 by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Financial assets are measured at fair value
at initial recognition in the financial statements. During the initial recognition of financial assets other than
"Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss", transaction costs are added to fair value or deducted

from fair value.

According to TFRS 9 requirements, classification and measurement of financial assets will depend on the
business model within which financial assets are managed and their contractual cash fl ristics
whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
VL Explanations on financial assets (continued)

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ are financial assets other than the ones that are managed
with business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows or business model that aims to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the assets; and if the contractual terms
of the financial asset do not lead to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest at certain
date; that are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or are financial assets
included in a portfolio aiming to short-term profit making. Financial assets at the fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognized at fair value and remeasured at their fair value after recognition. All gains and losses
arising from these valuations are reflected in the income statement. As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024,

the Bank has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income where the
business models aim to hold financial assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows and selling assets and
the terms of financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal of interest at certain

dates.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at their
The interest income of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income that are calculated by
effective interest rate method and dividend income from equity instruments are reflected in the statement of
profit or loss. “Unrealized profits and losses™, the difference between the fair value of debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income and their amortized cost, are not reflected in the statement of profit
or loss for the period until the corresponding financial asset is collected, sold, disposed of or weakened and is
followed in the “Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss™ account under
equity. Accumulated fair value differences under equity are reflected to the statement of profit or loss when

such securities are collected or disposed.
Securities representing shares in capital classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are carried at their fair value.

The “Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income™ portfolio includes fixed-rate
treasury bills, government bonds and Eurobonds issued by the Turkish Treasury, as well as CPI indexed
government bonds. These CPI indexed securities are carried and accounted based on real coupon rates and the
reference inflation index on the date of issuance and the reference inflation index on the valuation date. The
reference indices used in calculating the actual coupon payment amounts of these assets arc created according

to the CPI of two months ago.

As of 30 June 2025, government debt securities classified under “Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income™ is amounting to TL 3.894.980 (31 December 2024: TL 1.118.155) and the Bank has

no other financial assets (31 December 2024: TL 37.768).

fair value.

3. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost. Financial asscts
measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at acquisition cost including the transaction costs, which
reflect the fair value of those instruments and subsequently recognized at amortized cost by using effective
is accounted in

interest rate method. Interest income obtained from financial assets measured at amortized cost
statement of profit or loss.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
VI. Explanations on financial assets (continued)

3. Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

Financial assets at amortized cost are initially recognised by adding transaction costs to their acquisition costs,
which reflect their fair values, and following their recognised, they are measured at their “Amortized cost™ using
the “Effective interest (internal rate of return) method”. Interest income related to financial assets measured at
amortized cost is reflected in the statement of profit or loss. The Bank's financial assets measured at amortized
cost consist of loans. As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has loans amounting to TL 18.633.616 (31 December 2024:

TL 12.132.895).

Loans

Loans are financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments terms and are not quoted in an active market.
Loans are initially recognized at acquisition cost plus transaction costs presenting their fair value and thereafter
measured at amortized cost using the “Effective Interest Rate (internal rate of return) Method™. Transaction
fees, dues and other expenses paid for loan guarantees are recognized under the profit and loss accounts.

The Bank management reviews the loan portfolio at regular intervals and in case of doubts that the loans granted
will not be collected. The Bank applies the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans and
Provisions to be Set Aside”, which was published in the Official Gazette No. 29750 on 22 September 2016 and

regulation published in the Official Gazette No. 30569 dated 18 October 2018, for loans that

amended by the
ns within the framework of the

are considered in this matter. Accordingly, the Bank realises classificatio
principles set out in the “Regulation on Provisions™ (“Regulation on Provisions™).

Within the framework of the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans
and the Provisions to be Set aside with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board dated 21
December 2017 and numbered 7650, the provisions of the Bank will be replaced by the 10th, 11th, 13th and
15th of the regulation instead of TFRS 9 considering the authorisation obtained from BRSA on 21 February
2022. In this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding
the measurement of provisions. In accordance with the authorisation received from the BRSA, the Bank
calculates its provisions not with the expected credit losses under TFRS 9, but within the scope of the 10th,

11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation until indicated otherwise.

Explanations on offsetting financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to collect/pay the
related financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Explanations on sales and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (“Repo™) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income” and “at amortised cost™ in the balance sheet according to the investment purposes
and measured according to the portfolio of the Bank to which they belong. Funds obtained under repurchase
agreements are accounted under “Funds provided under repurchase agreements” in liability accounts and
differences between the sale and repurchase prices determined by these repurchase agreements are accrued
evenly over the life of the repurchase agreement using the “Effective interest (internal return) method™. Funds
given against securities purchased under agreements to resell (“Reverse repos”) are accounted under
“Receivables from money market” in the balance sheet. The difference between the purchase and resell price
determined by these repurchase agreements is accrued evenly over the life of repurchase agreements using the

“Effective interest rate method™.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on non-current assets held for sale and related to discontinued operations and explanations
on liabilities related with these assets

According to “TFRS S Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”™ which satisfy to be
classified as held for sale are measured by the lower of carrying value less cost to sell and these assets are not
amortised; and are separately presented in the financial statements. For an asset (or else the group of assets) to
be classified as held for sale; the asset should be ready for immediate sale in frequently seen and accustomed
terms and the probability of sale should be high. For the probability of sale to be high, appropriate level of
management should have made a plan for the sale of the asset (or else the group of assets) and a program should
have been initiated in order to determine buyers as well as complete the plan. Also, the asset or else the group
of assets) shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value. On the other hand, the sale is expected to
be journalized as a completed sale within one year after the classification date; and the necessary transactions
and procedures to complete the plan should demonstrate the fact that the possibility of making significant
changes or cancelling the plan is low. Certain events and conditions may extend the duration of completion of

sale to more than one year.

If such delay arises from any events and conditions beyond the control of the entity and if there 1s sufficient
evidence that has an ongoing disposal plan for these assets, such assets (or else the group of assets) are continued
to be classified as assets held for sale (or else the group of assets). A discontinued operation is part of bank as
held for sale or disposed. The results of discontinued operations are presented Explanations on interest income
and expense in the statement of profit or loss. As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no

discontinued operations at the end of the interim reporting period.

As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no non-current assets held for sale.

A discontinued operation is a division of a bank that is classified as being disposed of or held for sale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.

Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no goodwill. Other intangible assets consist of
computer software and licenses. Intangible assets are amortized according to the straight-line basis, considering
their economic useful lives in the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation is provided for intangible

assets over 3-15 years.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the st
and equipment are determined by the Bank management an
to their useful lives. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over 3-10 years using the straight-

lease periods for leasehold

raight-line basis. The useful lives of property, plant
d are depreciated using rates determined according
line basis.

Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line basis over the shorter of the operting
improvements or the useful life leasehold improvements.

For assets that have been recognised for less than one accounting period as of the balance sheet date,
depreciation has been allocated in the amount calculated by proportioning the depreciation amount estimated a
year to the period the asset recognised under assets. Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment arc determined by comparing proceeds with their net carrying amounts. Repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the income statements during the period in which they are incurred. The cost of major
renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in
excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Bank. Major
renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset. The Bank has no purchase
commitment regarding its property, plant and equipment. The Bank has no pledges and mortgages on its

roperty, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment Economic useful lives
Cahs on hand 50 years

Office machinery and suppliers 4-15 years

Leaschold improvements 5 years

Other property, plant and equipment | 3-10 years

Motor vehicles 2-5 years

Explanations on leases
The Bank assesses whether the contract has the quality of a lease or whether the lease includes the

transaction at the beginning of a contract in the application of TFRS 16. In case the contract is transferred
for a certain period of time to control the use of the asset defined for a price, it is either leased or includes
a lease. The Bank reflects the existence of a right of use and a lease liability to the financial statements at

the effective date of the lease.

After the commencement date, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost model. To apply
the cost model, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses; and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The Bank applies
TAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the real estates considered as right of-use assets are

impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

With the “TFRS 16 Leases” standard effective from 1 January 2019, the difference between operating
leases and finance leases has been eliminated and the lease transactions have been disclosed under
the “Lease liabilities” as liability by lessees. The lease transactions were started to be recognised
under “Property, plant and equipment” as an asset and under “Lease liabilities” as a liability.

TERS 16 Leases standard eliminates the dual accounting model currently applied for lessees through
recognizing finance leases in the balance sheet whereas not recognizing operational lease. Instead. it is s¢
forth a single model similar to the accounting of finance leases (on balance sheet). For :

accounting remains the same.

Right of use assets
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The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on leases (continued)
The right use includes the presence of:

a) The initial measurement amount of the lease obligation,

b) the amount obtained by deducting all the rental incentives received from all lease
payments made at or before the beginning of the lease;

¢) all initial direct costs incurred by the Bank

When applying the cost method, the existence of the right to use:
a) accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses are deducted and

b) Measures the restatement of the lease obligation at the restated cost. The Bank applies the
provisions of depreciation regulated under the TAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”, while
depreciating the rights of use assets.

Lease liability

The Bank measures the lease obligation at the present value of the unpaid lease payments on the date that
the lease commences. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease obligation on the date that
the lease actually commences, consists of the following payments to be made for the right of use of the
underlying asset during the lease period and not paid on the date the lease actually starts.

After the effective date of the lease, the Bank measures the lease liability as follows:

. Inerease the book value to reflect the interest on the lease liability

- Reduces the book value to reflect the lease payments made and

The book value is measured to reflect reassessments and restructuring, or reflect
to fixed lease payments as of revised nature.

The interest on the lease liability for each period in the lease period is the amount calculated by applying a
fixed periodic interest rate to the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Explanations on provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions and contingent liabilities are accounted in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard
“Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets™ (“TAS 37"). Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. A provision for contingent liabilities arising from past events should be recognized
in the same period of occurrence in accordance with the periodicity principle. A liability is recognized as a
contingent liability where a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of more than one events not wholly within the control of
the Bank; or a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Explanations on obligations related to employee benefits

employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than the reason@spatiffl
Labor Law. According to the related regulation, the Bank is obliged to pay terminatio§ 7
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who retire, quit for their military service obligations, who have been dismissed as defined in the related
regulation or who have completed at least one year of service. The reserve for employment termination benefits
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank arising
from this liability. In accordance with TAS 19, actuarial gains and losses arc recognized in equity. The Bank
and its employees are not a member of foundations, funds or similar organizations.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on taxation

Corporate tax
As of 30 June 2025, the current effective corporate tax rate 18 30%.

Pursuant to Article 25 of Law No. 7394 published in the Official Gazette dated 15 April 2022 and numbered
31810; Corporate tax rate has been determined as 25% for banks, companies within the scope of Law No. 6361,
electronic payment and money institutions, authorized foreign exchange institutions, asset management
companies, capital market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies is
determined as 25%, and this rate will be effective as of 1 July 2022. It came into force to start with the
declarations that must be submitted and to be applied to corporate earnings for accounting periods starting from
1 January 2022,

In accordance with Article 21 of the Law No. 7456 published in the Official Gazette dated 15 July 2023 and
numbered 32249, starting from the declarations that must be submitted as of 1/10/2023; The corporate tax rate
to be applied to the earnings of entities in 2023 and the following taxation periods has been increased from 25%
to 30% for banks and other institutions mentioned in the law. As of 30 June 2025, the corporate tax rate has
been applied as 30% in the unconsolidated financial statements.

o be calculated as a result of the addition of the nondeductible

| income of the corporations and deducting the
s. No further tax is paid

The corporate tax rate is applied to the tax base t
expenses in accordance with the tax laws to the commercia
exceptions (such as the participation earnings exemption) and deductions in the tax law
if the profit is not distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business or permanent attorney in Tiirkiye
or to resident corporations are not subject to withholding tax. While dividends paid to individuals and
corporations were subject to withholding tax at the rate of 15%, this rate has been changed to 10% with the
Presidential Decision published in the Official Gazette dated 22 December 2021 and No. 31697. Addition of
profit to capital is not considered as profit distribution and withholding tax is not applied.

Corporations calculate advance tax quarterly on their financial profits at the corporate tax rate valid for that year
and declare and pay until the 17th day of the second month following that period. Advance tax paid by
corporations for the current period is offset against the annual corporate tax calculated on the annual corporate
income in the following year. Despite the offset, if there is temporary prepaid tax remaining, this balance can
be used to offset any other financial liabilities to the government.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income for
up to five years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.

Corporations which have been fallen to legal proceedings because of owe to the bank or Savings Deposit
Insurance Funds, and their warranters’ real estates, participation stocks, founding bonds, redeemed shares,
options to call of mortgagors’ revenues that used for against debts or transferring to SDIF, 50% of the profits
arising from the sale of the said assets obtained by the banks in this way, and 75% of the profits arising from
the sale of others are exempted from corporation tax. Previously, corporate taxpayers were allowggd-damgxclude
50% of such capital gains from their corporate tax base, subject to certain conditions. With thg Ay
gains from sale of immovables will be fully taxable. Immovables which have been acquired Jefqre the gf
date of the new law (15 July 2023), however the exemption rate for capital gains from suchfimghoy oA

25%.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on taxation (continued)

Corporate tax (continued)

Tax returns are required to be filled and delivered to the related tax office until the end of the fourth month
following the balance sheet date and the accrued tax is paid until the end of the same month. Tax returns are
open for 5 years from the beginning of the year following the balance sheet date and during this period the tax
authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based and
may issue re-assessments based on their findings. As of the end of the 2021 calendar year, the conditions sought
for inflation adjustment in the calculation of corporate tax have been fulfilled, within the framework of the
repeated provision of Article 298/A of the Tax Procedure Law. However, with the Law No. 7352 on the
Amendment of the Tax Procedure Law and the Corporate Tax Law, published in the Official Gazette dated 29
January 2022 and numbered 31734, the temporary article 33 was added to the Tax Procedure Law No. 213,
including the advance tax periods. Financial statements will not be subject to inflation adjustment for the 2021
and 2022 accounting periods (for those designated as a special accounting period, as of the accounting periods
ending in 2022 and 2023) and the advance tax periods for the 2023 accounting period, regardless of whether
the conditions for the repetitive inflation adjustment within the scope of Article 298 are met.

It has been enacted that the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 will be subject
to inflation adjustment regardless of whether the conditions for the inflation adjustment are met, and the
profit/loss differences arising from the inflation adjustment to be made will be shown in the previous years'
profit/loss account. According to the 17th article of the Law No. 7491 on Amendments to Certain Laws and
Decree Laws published in the Official Gazette No. 32413 on 28 December 2023, banks are companies within
the scope of the Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing and Savings Finance Companies Law No. 6361 dated
21 November 2012. Profit/loss differences arising from the inflation adjustment to be made by payment and
clectronic money institutions, authorized foreign exchange institutions, asset management companies, capital
market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies in the 2024 and 2025
accounting periods, including the provisional tax periods. It is regulated that the resulting profits or losses will

not be taken into account in determining the corporate tax base.

Income withholding tax

There is a withholding tax liability on dividend distributions, and this withholding tax liability is accrued in the
period in which the dividend payment is made. Dividend payments other than those made to non-resident
taxpayer institutions that generate income through a workplace or permanent representative in Tirkiye and to
institutions resident in Tiirkiye are subject to 15% withholding tax. In the application of withholding tax rates
for profit distributions made to non-resident taxpayer institutions and natural persons, the withholding tax rates
included in the relevant Double Taxation Avoidance Agreements are also taken into consideration. Addition of
retained earnings to capital is not considered profit distribution, therefore it is not subject to withholding tax.

Transfer pricing

Transfer pricing is discussed under the title of “disguised profit distribution” through transfer pricing of Article
13 of the Corporate Tax Law. The details of the implementation in the “General Notification on Disguised Profit
Distribution Through Transfer Pricing” published on November 18. 2007, have been identified.

If the taxpayers are involved in the purchase, sale or purchase of goods, services or goods that are not carried
out within the scope of the precedent of comparability with the parties concerned, then the relevant profits will
be considered to be implicitly distributed through transfer pricing. Disguised profit distributions done with this
type of transfer pricing will not be deductible from the tax base in terms of corporate tax.

Deferred tax

The Bank calculates and reflects deferred tax in accordance with the provisions of “Incomy
for taxable temporary differences that arise between the book value of an asset or lia
determined in accordance with the tax legislation. Deferred tax liabilities are recog i
temporary differences whereas deferred tax assets resulting from temporary difference:
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extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized. As of 30 June 2025, the tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities is 30% on
temporary differences expected to realise (31 December 2024: 30%). Deferred tax liabilities are calculated for
al] taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are
recognized only if it is highly probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilize these differences.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on borrowings

Except for liabilities related to financial instruments at fair value, financial liabilities are recognised at their
acquisition costs, including transaction costs, and carried at their discounted value calculated using the
“effective interest rate” in the subsequent periods. The Bank did not issued convertible bonds during the interim
reporting period.

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has issued securities amounting to TL 7.608.469 (31 December 2024: TL
4.571.808).

In the case of assets that require significant time to be ready for use or sale (qualifying assets), borrowing costs
directly associated with their purchase, construction or production are included in the cost of the asset until the
relevant asset is made ready for use or sale. The amount of borrowing costs that can be capitalized for funds
borrowed for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset in a period is the amount determined by deducting the
income obtained from temporary investments of these funds from the total borrowing costs incurred for these
assets in the relevant period. All other borrowing costs recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period

e Bank satisfies its resource requirements by obtaining loans from domestic and foreign

which they incurred. Th
markets, when deemed

institutions, borrowing from money markets or issuing securities in domestic and foreign
necessary.

Explanations on issuance of share certificates

None.
Explanations on bank drafts and letter of acceptances

None.

Explanations on government grants

None.

Explanations on operating segments
The Bank has operating activities in “Commercial and Corporate Banking”, “Treasury” and
Institutions and Investment Banking™.

“Financial

Explanations on other matters

None.
Explanations on subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

In accordance with TAS 27 “Turkish Accounting Standard for Consolidated and Seperate Financial
Statements”. investments in associates and subsidiaries are accounted at cost and are recognised to the
unconsolidated financial statements after deducting the provision for impairment, if any.
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SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

a)

I. Explanations on equity
Equity and capital adequacy ratio were calculated within the framework of “Regulation on Banks’ Equity” and
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks”.
As of 30 June 2025, the Bank’s total equity is calculated as TL 3.668.342 (31 December 2024: TL 2.757.042)
and capital adequacy ratio is 19.18% (31 December 2024: 24.60%). The capital adequacy standard ratio of the
Bank is above the minimum ratio determined by the relevant legislation.

Information on equity

Amount
before 1
January

Current period Amount 2024 ™

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-in share capital following all debts in terms of ¢laim in liquidation of the Bank 600.000
Share premiums -
Retained camings 108.807
Gains recognized in equity as per TAS 5.824
Profit 2.531.629
Profit for the period 464282
2.067.347

Prior period profit
Shares acquired free of charge from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled partnerships and cannot be recognised
within profit for the period -
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Before Deductions 3.246.260
Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Common Equity as per the Ist clause of Provisional Article 9 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks
The sum of the net loss for the current period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retained

earnings and losses recognised in equity in accordance with TAS -
Improvement costs for operating leasing 905
Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

149.694

Other intangible assets other than morigage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding thosc arising from temporary differences (net of related
tax liability)

Cash-flow hedge reserve =
Shortfall of provisions to expected losses -
Securitisation gain on sale 30915
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Investments in own shares

Credits extended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that arc outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
{amount above 10% threshold)

Investments in the capital of banking. financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Morigage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (-) of the common equity Tier 1 in accordance with the second paragraph of
the provisional article 2 in the regulation regarding the Banks® Equity

The amount above threshold for the investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of
the 1ssued share capital

The amount above threshold for morteage servicing nghts

The amount above threshold for deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover
deductions

Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET 1)

26




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FORTH E INTERIM

PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL

Preferred shares that are not included in Common Equity Tier | capital and related shares iSsue premiums
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA (For the purposcs of
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds)
Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjusiments
Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments
Investments of Bank to Banks that invest in Bank's additional equity and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with compatible with Article 7
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consalidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
The total of net Tong position of the direct or indirect investments in additional Tier I capital of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
Other items to be defined by the BRSA

Regulatory Adjustments which will e deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition period
Goodwill and other intangible assets which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of
the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)
Net deferred tax asset/liability which is not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the
subparagraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds (-)
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier | due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier I capital 2
Total Additional Tier 1 capital 397.408
Total Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital = Common Equity Tier 1 capital + Additional Tier 1 capital) 3.462.154
TIER 2 CAPITAL
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that arc approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes of
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds) B
Provisions { Article § of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks) 206.188
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 206.188
Tier 2 eapital: regulatory adjustments
Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier 2 Capital (-)
[nvestments of the Bank to banks that invest on the Bank's Tier 2 and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with the conditions declared in Article 8
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that arc outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions) (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA (-)
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -
Total Tier 2 capital 206.188
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 3.668.342
The Sum of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)

Credits extended contrary to the provisions of Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law
Net Book Values of Movables and Immovables Exceeding the Limit Defined in the Article 57, Clause 1 of the
Banking Law and the Assets Acquired against Overdue Receivables and Held for Sale bul Retained more than Five

397.408

Years
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from total capital during the transition period
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation. net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount abave the 10% threshold) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1
capital, Additional Tier | capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub -paragraph of the Provisional Article
2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the Additional Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier | capital, Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital for the
purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold), mortgage servicing rights
(amount above 10% threshold), deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and mortgaging services
{amount above 10% threshold. net of related tax liability) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1
capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks' Own

Funds (-)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK
(continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)
OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital) 3.668.342
Total Risk Weighted Assets 19.126.392
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Common Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 16.02
18.10

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 19.18

BUFFERS

Institution specific buffer requirement of the Bank {atb+c) 2.54
a)Capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 250
b) Bank s specific countercyclical buffer requirement (%) 0.04
¢) Systematic bank buffer requirement (%)
The ratio of Additional Commen Equity Tier 1 capital which will be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4
of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital buffers to Risk Weighted Assets (%)

Amounts below the Excess Limits as per the Deduction Principles
Portion of the total of net long positions of investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier 1

capital
Portion of the total of investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the bank
owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | capital
Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)
Limits related to provisions considered in Tier IT calculation

General provisions for standard based receivables (before ten thousand twenty-five limitation)
Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of gencral provisions for receivables where the standard approach used
Excess amount of total provision amount to credit risk Amount of the Internal Ratings Based Approach in
accordance with the Communiqué on the Calculation
Excess amount of total provision amount to 0.6% of risk weighted receivables of credit risk Amount of the Internal
Ratings Based Approach in accordance with the Communigué on the Calculation

Debt instruments subjected to Article 4 (1o be implemented between January 1, 2018 and January 1, 2022)
Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier | Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Upper limit for Additional Tier 11 Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4

206,188
206.188

(1) Amounts in this column represents the amounts of items that are subject to transition provisions

The difference between Total Capital and Equity in the unconsolidated balance sheet mainly arises from
expected credit loss provisions arising from loans classified under stage I and stage II and subordinated loans.
In the calculation of Total Capital, up to 1.25% of expected credit loss from stage 1 and stage 2 over the credit
risk amount and subordinated loans with nominal amounts are taken into consideration as Tier Il Capital.
Additionally, the losses reflected to equity which is subject to deduction from TIER 1 capital are determined
by excluding the losses from cash flow hedging. On the other hand, in the calculation of the Total Capital,
improvement costs for operating leases classified under property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet,
intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities, other items defined by the regulator are taken into
consideration as amounts deducted from Total Capital.

In accordance with the scope of the regulation issued by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency, the
amount subject to credit risk is calculated with the Central Bank foreign exchange buying rates as of 28 June
2024 and the net valuation differences of the securities in the securities portfolio whose fair value difference is
reflected in other comprehensive income are negative. In this case, these differences are not taken into account
in the equity amount to be used for the capital adequacy ratio. As of 30 June 2025, the CBRT foreign exchange
buying rate on 28 June 2024 was used in the capital adequacy ratio calculations and 0% risk weight was applied
{o receivables from the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye (the “CBRT").
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

1. Explanations on equity (continued)

Amount

before 1

January

Prior period Amount 2024 %

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-in share capital following all debis in terms of claim in liquidation of the Bank 600.000
Share premiums *
Retained earnings 51.259
Gains recognized in equity as per TAS (550)
Profit 2.124.895
Profit for the period 1.150.967
973.928

Prior period prolit
Shares acquired free of charge from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled partnerships and cannot be recognised
within profit for the period -
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Before Deductions 2.775.604
Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Common Equity as per the Ist clause of Provisional Article 9 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks
The sum of the net loss for the current period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retained

earnings and losses recognised in equity in accordance with TAS 7.328
Improvement costs for operating leasing 905
Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

123.919

Other intangible assets other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability)
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related

tax hability)

Cash-flow hedge reserve -
Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

Securitisation gain on sale

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Invesiments in own shares

Credits extended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold. net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (<) of the common equity Tier | in accordance with the second paragraph of
the provisional article 2 in the regulation regarding the Banks’ Equity

The amount above threshold for the investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of
the issued share capital

The amount above threshold for mortgage servicing rights

The amount above threshold for deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier I and Tier 2 to cover

deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 132.152
2.643.452

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET 1)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

1. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL

Proferred shares that are not included in Common Equity Tier 1 capital and related shares 1ssue premiums
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issuc premiums that are approved by the BRSA (For the purposes of
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds)
Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
Investments in own Additional Tier | instruments
Investments of Bank to Banks that invest in Bank's additional equity and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with compatible with Article 7
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own morc than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
The Total of Net Long Position of the Direct or Indirect Investments in Additional Tier I Capital of Unconsolidated
Banks and Financial Institutions where the Bank Owns more than 10% of the Issued Share Capital
Other items to be defined by the BRSA

Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from Tier 1 eapital during the transition period
Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted from Common
Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on
Banks™ Own Funds (<)
Net deferred tax asset/liability which is not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the
subparagraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital
Total Additional Tier 1 capital -
Total Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital = Common Equity Tier I capital + Additional Tier 1 eapital) 2.643.452
TIER 2 CAPITAL
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes ot
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds)
Provisions (Article § of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks)
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier 2 Capital (-)
Investments of the Bank to banks tha invest on the Bank's Tier 2 and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with the conditions declared in Article 8
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank docs not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions) (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA (-)
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital *
Total Tier 2 eapital 113.590
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 2.757.042
The Sum of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)

Credits extended contrary to the provisions of Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law
Net Book Values of Movables and Immovables Exceeding the Limit Defined in the Article 57, Clause 1 of the
Banking Law and the Assets Acquired against Overdue Receivables and Held for Sale but Retained more than Five

113.590
113.590

Years
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA -
Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from total capital during the transition period
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier |
capital, Additional Tier | capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub -paragraph of the Provisional Article
2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier | capital. Additional Tier | capital, Tier 2 capital for the
purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the common stack of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold), mortgage servicing rights
(amount above 10% threshold), deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and mortgaging services
threshold, net of related tax liability) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier |

{amount above 10%
first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks' Own

capital for the purposes of the
Funds (-)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

1. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)
OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital) 2.757.042
Total Risk Weighted Assets 11.207.923
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 23:59

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 23.59

Capital Adeguacy Ratio (%0) 24.60

BUFFERS

Institution specific buffer requirement of the Bank {atb+c) 2.54

a)Capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 2.50

b) Bank’s specific countercyclical buffer requirement (%) 0.04

c) Systematic bank buffer requirement (%) -

The ratio of Additional Commeon Equity Tier 1 capital which will be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4

of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital buffers to Risk Weighted Assets (%) .

Amounts below the Excess Limits as per the Deduction Principles

Portion of the total of net long positions of investments in equily items of unconsol idated banks and financial

institutions where the bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier I

capital -

Portion of the total of investments in equity items of Unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the bank

owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | capital -

Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) -

Deferred tax assels arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability} -

Limits related to provisions considered in Tier 1T calculation

General provisions for standard based receivables (before ten thousand twenty-five limitation) 113.590

113.590

Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of general provisions for receivables where the standard approach used
Excess amount of total provision amount to credit risk Amount of the Internal Ratings Based Approach in

aceordance with the Communiqué on the Calculation
Excess amount of total provision amount to 0.6% of risk weighted reccivables of credit risk Amount of the Internal
Ratings Based Approach in accordance with the Communigué on the Calculation
Debt instruments subjected to Article 4 (to be impl ted between January 1, 2018 and January 1, 2022)
Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Upper limit for Additional Tier 1l Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier 11 Capital subjected to temporary Article 4

(1) Amounts in this column represents the amounts of items that are subject to transition provisions
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

b) Debt instruments included in equity calculation

Tssuer

Destek Yatmm Bankas: A 5.

Identifier(s) (CUSIP, [SIN ewc:)

Governing faw (s) of the instrumer

BRSA / Turkish Law

Regulatory treatment

Subject to 10% deduction as of 1/1/2015

Eligible on unconsolidated and /or consolidated basis Unconselidated and Consalidated
Instrument type Bond

Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in million USE), a5 of nost recent reporting date) 10

Nominal value of instrument (million USD) 10

Aceounting classification of the instrument

347001 — Subardinated Borrowing lostruments

07,02.2025

Issuance date of instrument

Maturity structure of the instrument (demand/lime) Demand

Onginal maturity of the insoument 07.02.2025
Yes

Issuer call subject to prior supervisory (BRSA) approval

Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount

07.08.2030

Subsequent call dates, if applicable

Fvery 6-month interest payment period after 07.08 2030

Interest/Divident Payments

Fined or floating coupon/dividend payments

Floating

First 5 years: 9.40% fixed; second § years: Interest rate = US Treasury fixed-term borrowing rate plus
4.94% Margin to be applied

Coupon rate and any refated index

Existence of any dividend payment restriction

Yes

Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory

The Bank has the authority to cance! intercst and dividend payments, and if it exerciscs this authority, it wil
not be required to pay the difference between the amount specified in the agreement and the amount
aetually paid, including the amount not paid. in subsequent periods.

Existence of step up or other incentive Lo redeem

MNoncumulative or cumulative

Noncumulative

Convertibility into Shares

Convertible or non-convertible into equity shares

If the Bank's TIER | capital adequacy ratin or consolidated core capital adequacy ratio falls below 5.125%.
the Bank shall have the right to reduce the value of these debt instruments or conver them into shares,

If convertible, conversion mrigger (s)

An amount sufficient to ensure that the Bank's TIER | capital adequacy ratio or consolidated core capital
adequacy ratio reaches al least 5,123 percent may be subject to a write-down or canversion into shares.

If convertible, fully or partially

If convertible, conversion rale

Yes

If convertible, type of instrument convernble into

If convertible, issuer of instrument (o be converted into

Write-down feature

Dhuie 1o the losses incurred, where the Bank is at the point at which the BRSA may determine pursuant to
Article 71 of the Banking Law that: (1) its opetating license is to be revoked and the Bank 15 lquidated or
(i} the rights of all of its sharcholders (except to dividends), and the management and supervision of the
Bank, arc to be transferred to the SDIF on the condition that losses are deducted from the capital of
existing shareholders (occurrence aof either condition means the issuer has become non-viable), o (iii} itis
prohable that the lssuer will become non-viable: then the bonds can be written-down

If bonds can be written-down, write-down tnggeris)

1f bond can be written-down, full or partial

Partially or fully

1f band can be written-down, permanent or [emporary

Continuously

1f temporary write-down, description of write-up mechamsm

Pasition in subordination hierarchy in case of liquidation (instrument type
immediately senior 10 the instrunent)

It the event of the Bank's liquidation, the right to collect the claim frog be exercised afier

the deposit holders, other creditors, and debt instrurments included,

In compliance with article number 7 and & of " Own fund regulation "

The instrument is in compliance with article number 7

Details of incompliances with article number 7 and 8 of " Own fund regulation”

The insirument is not in compliant with article numbered i
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

L Explanations on equity (continued)
c) Disclosures to ensure reconciliation between the information regarding equity items and the
balance sheet amounts

Credit risk is the probability of loss due to the failure of the borrower to fulfil its obligations partially or
completely on time by not complying with the contractual requirements of the loan customer and the
possibility of loss due to a decrease in creditworthiness. The Bank sets credit limits for counterparties in order
to achieve risk limitation in lending transactions which are subject to credit risk and does not allocate loans
above these limits. While determining these limits, the financial structure and debt payment capacities of the
customers are taken into consideration as well as the credit policies and strategies determined by the Bank.
The Bank includes the credit risks incurred due to all kinds of transactions specified in the Banking Law No.
5411 and within the scope of credit. Credit risks incurred due to new products and services planned to be

offered by the Bank are also evaluated in this context.

11. Explanations on credit risk

Calculation of the amount subject to credit risk in the Bank is realised according to the “Standard Approach”
within the framework of the “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks”.

In order to ensure effectiveness in risk management, information is provided at regular intervals on the basis

of informing the senior management about the developments in credit risk management and the results of the
analyses and studies carried out accordingly regarding effectiveness in risk management. When assuming
credit risk, actions are taken in compliance with the limits set forth by the Banking Law. The Bank has internal
“risk limits™ established in accordance with its portfolio structure and risk appetite, and adherence to these
limits is monitored by designated control officers at three levels of oversight.

The Bank determined policies regarding credit risk management and realises its “Credit Policy” on the basis
of its risk management. Regarding the Bank’s risk management policy, the Bank's credit standards regarding
the loans to be allocated to customers to be included in the corporate loan portfolio have been determined by
adhering to the legal legislation and banking ethical rules. The general principles and procedures of the loan
have been regulated, and the duties, authorities, responsibilities and obligations regarding the loan process
have been determined. The detailed analysis of the credit allocation process is included in the “Credit

Allocation and Credit Monitoring Procedure”.

The Bank allocates its existing loans to Article numbered 11 *Communiqué on Methods and Principles for
Determining the Nature of Loans and Other Receivables and Allocation of Provisions™ published by BRSA.
In the evaluation of customers, the Bank uses the “internal rating system™ developed within the Bank and
which takes into account the behavioral characteristics of the customers as well as their financial data. In
accordance with the rules determined in the “Credit Allocation and Credit Monitoring Procedure”, the Bank
regularly monitors the credit worthiness of all credit customers in the portfolio and prepares action plans

accordingly.
The Bank has no overdue or closely monitored loans.

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has 48 cash loans from its customers amounting to TL 18.633.616 and 79 non-
cash loans from its customers amounting to TL 6.494.263. The Bank’s largest 100 and 200 cash and non-cash
loan customers compose 100% and 100%, respectively of the total cash and non-cash loan portfolio under

balance sheet and off-balance sheet items.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I11.

Explanations on currency risk
The difference between the Bank’s foreign currency denominated and foreign currency indexed assets and
liabilities is defined as the “Net Foreign Currency Position™ and is the basis of currency risk.
Foreign currency risk indicates the probability of loss that banks are subject to due to the exchange rate
movements in the market.

Currency risks are calculated on monthly basis in the risk table within the scope of the Standard Method and
the results are reported to the relevant official bodies and the Bank management. Currency risk is considered

in the calculation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio as a part of the market risk.

Currency risk is managed and monitored in accordance with all legal regulations and risk limits and early
warning limits determined by the Board of Directors as a component of market risk.

The Bank’s publicly announced foreign exchange bid rates for USD and EUR as of the date of the financial
statements denominated in Turkish Lira (“TL") and for the last five working days prior to that date are as

follows:
(The exchange rates indicated below are presented in TL 1.)

USD EUR
Balance sheet evaluation rate (30 June 2025) (First day current bid rate) 39.7408 46.6074
30 June 2025 39.7408 46.6074
27 June 2025 39.6989 46.4941
26 June 2025 39.6392 45.9946
25 June 2025 39.5502 45.8819
24 June 2025 39.6470 45.5260

The simple arithmetic average of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rates denominated in USD and EUR for the

last thirty days preceding the balance sheet date are presented in the table below:
39.3162

USD 1
EUR 1 45.2045
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITIO

Explanations on currency risk (continued)

Information related to Bank’s currency risk

") unless otherwise indicated.)

N AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Other

EUR USsD currencies Total
30 June 2025
Assets
Cash (Cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and
balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkive 636 952,107 419 953.162
Banks 246.034 35.044 58.275 339.353
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - A %
Receivables from moncy market - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 100.480 - 100.480
Loans 2.630.738 8.734.662 - 11.365.400
Investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures - - - -
Financial assets at amortised cost - - B -
Hedging derivative financial assets - 12.895 - 12.895
Property, plant and equipment - - - -
Intangible assets B - - -
Other assets - 378.334 - 378.334
Total assets 2.877.408 10.213.522 58.694  13.149.624
Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - -
Foreign currency deposits - - B -
Funds from money market 11.598 173.279 15.387 200.264
Funds borrowed from other financial institutions 139.883 9.053.531 44.555 9.237.96%
Issued securities (! - 7.145.704 - 7.145.704
Miscellaneous payables 240.231 275177 532 515.940
Hedging derivative financial liabilities - 71.389 - 71.389
Other liabilities 507.240 1.470.060 136.817  2.114.117
Taotal liabilities 898.952 18.189.140 197.291  19.285.383
Net on balance sheet position 1.978.456 (7.975.618) (138.597)  (6.135.759)
Net-off balance sheet position (1.980.938)  7.932.848 140.878  6.092.788
Financial derivative assets 430.995 13.860.234 140.878  14.432.107
Financial derivative liabilitics 2.411.933 5.927.386 - 8339319
Non-cash loans (*) 177.746 12.904 - 190.650
31 December 2024
Total assets 624.192 7.686.332 90.920  B.401.444
Total liabilities 1.191.299  10.865.080 100.456  12.156.835
Net on balance sheet position (567.107) (3.178.748) (9.536) (3.755.391)
Net-off balance sheet position 535.944  3.112.762 17.787  3.666.493
Financial derivative assels 735.532  11.431.677 81.341  12.248.550
Financial derivative liabilitics 199.588 8318915 63.554 8.582.057
Non-cash loans 158.253 109.364 - 267.617

(*) Non-cash loans are not included in the total of “Net-off balance sheel position™.

(1) Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet.
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I¥. Explanations on interest rate risk

“Interest Rate Risk” can be defined as the impact of interest rate changes on interest-sensitive asset and liability
items of both on and off-balance sheets and represents as the loss for the Bank.

Interest sensitivity regarding the asset and liability items included in the balance sheet and off-balance sheet
items is measured and evaluated by the Asset-Liability Committee (“ALCO”).

The Bank has monitored the matters such as measurement, analysis and reporting regarding the management
of interest rate risk with relevant procedures.

The influence of the interest rate risk in the current period on net income and equity was immaterial.

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Based on repricing dates)

Uptol 312 Sy O

1-3 interest
month monilis months 1-5years andover i, Total
30 June 2025
Assets
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques
purchased) and balances with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Tirkiye 873.762 - - - - 83.019 956,781
Banks 276.991 - - - - 318.845 595.836
Financial assets at [air value through profit or loss - - - - - - -
Receivables from money market - - - - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income - - 555,149 2.180.495 1.159.336 - 3.894 980
Loans 6.508.562 2.367.022 9.758.032 - - - 18.633.616
Financial assels at amortised cost - - - - - - -
Other assets !/ 105,405 68.664 30.374 - - 2.657.111 2.861.554

7.764.720  2.435.686 10.343.555  2.180.495 1.159.336  3.058.975 26.942.767

Total assets

Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - - - - -
Funds - - - - - - -
Funds from money market 609,008 - - - - - 609,008
Miscellancous payables - - - - - 1.657.62] 1.657.621
Issued securities 826,133 1408783 4.087.282 1286271 41235l - 8.020.820
Other funds 2.193.637 794937  6.249.395 - - - 9.237.969
Other liabilities 3.508.342 87.506 15.042 - - 3.806.459 7417349
Total liabilities 7137120 2.291.226 10.351.719  1.286.271  412.351 5.464.080 26.942.767
Balance sheet long position 627.600 144 460 - 894224  746.985 - 2413269
2 " (8.164) - - (2.405.105) (2.413.269)

Balance sheet short position

Net ofl-balance sheet long position
Net off-balance sheet short position - - - " s - -
627.600 144.460 (8.164) 894,224 746.985 (2.405.105) -

Total position
(1) Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets. derivative financial assets and other assets are presented in the “other assets”.

@) Derivative financial liabilities, funds, other funds, provisions, current tax period expense, deferred tax liability and equity are
presented in the “other liabilities™

3 Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Iv. Explanations on interest rate risk (continued)
Uptol 312 5 years i
month I3 nonths 1-5years and over Interest
months g bearing Total
31 December 2024
Assets
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transil, cheques 469.798 - = - - 100.241 570.039
purchased) and balances with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Turkiye
Banks TBR.477 - - - - 182.689 0971.166
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - - -
Receivables from money market 600.800 - - - - - 600.800
2.780 34.988 1.029.400 88.755 - 1.155.923

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive -

income
Loans 5455.134  1.865.729 4.812.032 - - - 12,132 895

- - - - 1.094.461 1.094 461
7.314.209 1.868.509  4.847.020 1.029.400 88.755  1.377.391 16.525.284

Financial assets at amortised cost
Other assets "

Total assets
Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - - - - -
Funds - - - - - - -
Funds from money market 178.114 - . - - - 178.114
Miscellaneous payables - - - - - - -
Issued securities 552.478 541.401 3.117.546 360.383 - - 4.571.808
Other funds 353.881 761.528 147.076  3.785.197 - - 5.047.682
Other liabilities 2.026.106 10.400 - - - 4691174 6.727.680
Total liabilities 3110579  1.313.329 3.264.622  4.145.580 4.691.174  16.525.284
Balance sheet long position 4.203.630 555.180  1.582.398 - 88.755 - 6.429.963
= # - (3.116.180) - (3.313.783)  (6.429963)

Balance sheet short position
Net off-balance sheet long position % .

Net off-balance sheet short position - = = o . _
Total position 4.203.630__ 555.180 1.582.398 (3.116.180)  88.755 (3.313.783) -

() Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, derivative financial assets and other assets are presented in the “other assets™.
) Derjvative financial liabilities, funds, other funds, provisions, current tax period expense, deferred tax liability and equity are

presented in the “other liabilities™.

Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments (%)

30 June 2025 EUR USD JPY TL

Assets
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and
balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye -
Banks 1.40 - 45.75
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -
Receivables from money market - -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 6.63 - 3l46
Loans 8.28 9.74 - 54.56
Financial assets at amortised cost

Liabilities

Bank deposits =
Other deposits

Funds from money market 1.00 3.38
Miscellaneous payables

Issued securities - 8.03
Other funds 315 6.18
Other liabilities 2.25 4.42
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IV. Explanations on interest rate risk (continued)

Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments (%)

31 December 2024 EUR USD JPY TL

Assets
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and

balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye
Banks
Financial assets at tair value through profit or loss
Receivables from money market
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans
Financial assets at amortised cost

- 1.70 - 47.37
- - 48.72
6.63 - 51.93

8.95 10.23 - 54.79

Liabilities

Bank deposits - B

Other deposits

Funds from money market

Miscellaneous payables - - -

Issued securities - 8.13 - 50.86
3.15 8.28 -

Other funds =
Other liabilities 2.88 4.69 - 43.22

Disclosures on interest rate risks arising from banking book and accounts

1.00 273 - 40.00

-

Repricing term mismatch and duration mismatch analyses, net economic value change analyses under different
interest rate stress scenarios and income simulations are used for interest rate risk management. The interest

rate risk arising from banking book is calculated and reported according to “Regulation on Measurement and
Evaluation of Interest Rate Risk in Banking Account” with “Standard Shock Method” published in the Official
Gazette numbered 28034 on 23 August 2011. The Bank’s calculation of the interest rate risk derived from

banking books is presented below:

Current period- Shocks applied (+/- Gains/Equity
Currency x basis points) ‘" Gains/Losses - Losses/ Equity
| T & 500 (405.883) (0.11%)
(400) 3177.042 0.10%
2 EUR 200 (21.956) (0.01%)
(200) 22.689 0.01%
3 USD 200 262.472 0.07%
(200) (308.159) (0.08%)
Total (of negative shocks) - 91.572 2.50%
Total (of positive shocks) o - (165367)  (451%)

() Separate lines as items are used for each shock of different intensity and direction applicd to a currency.
V.  Explanations on position risk of equity securities

None.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

V1. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio

Explanations on the Bank related to the liquidity risk management including the Bank’s risk capacity,
responsibilities and structure of liquidity risk management, reporting of liquidity risk in internal
banking, the strategy of liquidity risk and how to provide the communication of policies and
implementations with board of directors and business lines

The Bank’s liquidity and funding policy is to own sufficient liquidity reserve and funding opportunities to meet
Bank’s liabilities even in cases of stress, resulting from the market conditions or other conditions specific to the
Bank. The Bank has capacity to meet a high risk with broad and stable deposit, strong base capital structure and
diversified foreign borrowing sources and is capable of providing additional liquidity with high quality liquid
securities in its portfolio and available limits at both the Central Bank of Tiirkiye and other money markets.
Management of liquidity risk is shared by the ERC, ALCO, Treasury Department and Risk Management
Department. The ERC determines the liquidity management policies and the appropriate liquidity risk level in
line with the Bank’s risk appetite and monitors whether the liquidity risk is managed under the framework of
determined policies and within the defined limits. The Bank's liquidity is discussed at weekly ALCO meetings
and reported to the Board of Directors through monthly risk assessment reports. Excesses are monitored by the
Risk Management Department through the liquidity risk appetite, limit and early warning values determined by
the Bank's Board of Directors, and necessary notifications are made to the relevant management levels.

In accordance with the fifth paragraph of Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks' Liquidity Coverage Ratio, it has
been decided to apply the consolidated and unconsolidated total and foreign currency liquidity coverage ratios
for development and investment banks as zero percent until the contrary is determined by the BRSA, and in this

context, compliance with the legal ratio is not determined accordingly.
Liquidity management and the degree of centralization of fund strategies, the information about the
procedure between bank and the partners of Bank

None.
Explanation related to policies regarding fund resources times variations of funding strategy of Bank

Since the Bank has considered as an “Investment bank™, its funding sources are limited to non-deposits, and the
Bank's primary goal is to diversify its funding sources over time. Accordingly, both expanding the investor base
and diversifying the borrowing markets have been determined as priorities. The Bank's funding source consists
of loans from other financial institutions and borrowings from the interbank money market. In particular,
relatively long-term funding opportunities from foreign banks and borrowing opportunities from organized
markets can also be used.

Explanation related to liquidity management as currencies forming at least 5 percentage of aggregate
liabilities of the Bank

Liquidity management denominated in foreign currencies is ensured by harmonizing and diversifying the Bank's
domestic funding resources in terms of currency, passive cost and maturity of the resources under the
management of the Treasury Department, and foreign funding opportunities in coordination with the Treasury

Department and the Financial Institutions Group.
Information related to the techniques about the reduction of current liquidity risk

In order to satisfy possible cash outflows, the Bank will establish a liquidity buffer in accordance with its internal
liquidity target and monitor the relevant data on a daily basis. In order to mitigate risk, it is required to diversify
resources, adverse the possible concentration in payment dates, and observe asset-liability p¥i e
mismatch. b
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ENT OF THE BANK (continued)

VI. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio (continued)

Explanation regarding stress test
stress testing and scenario analysis are compatible with the

Conducting measurement, monitoring, limitation,
nd reporting these operations to the

structure and complexity of positions regarding liquidity risk management a
Board of Directors is stipulated by the Risk Management Procedure.

General information on liquidity urgent and unexpected situation plan

In cases where there is a risk that the Bank’s liquid assets will decrease to a level where it cannot satisfy short-
term liabilities and will make it difficult for the Bank to continue its operating activities and banking operations,
in order to be prepared for a financial emergency in order to manage the liquidity matters it may encounter as
much as possible and to protect the Bank's assets and reputation. The necessary actions that can be implemented
are determined by the Liquidity Emergency Action Plan (“LEAP”) that are approved from Board of Directors.

Liquidity coverage ratio

In accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of Banks” entered
into force after published on Official Gazette dated 1 November 2006 and numbered 26333 published by BRSA,
starting from 1 June 2007, weekly simple average of total liquidity adequacy rates related to primary maturity
segment and total liquidity adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 100% while
weekly simple average of foreign currency liquidity ratio related to primary maturity segment and foreign

currency adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 80%.
Liquidity coverage ratio is calculated by dividing high-quality liquid assets (“HQLA’
within a one-month maturity.

") to net cash outflows
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

V1. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio (continued)

Breakdown of assets and liabilities according to their outstanding maturities

Uptol 1-3 3-12 15y 5 years

30 June 2025 D 141 month months months S Years . nd over  Undistributed Total
Assels
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash
in transit, cheques purchased) and
balances with the Central Bank of
the Republic of Tarkiye 83.019 873.762 - - - - - 956.781
Banks 315.845 276.991 & - - - - 505,836
Financial assets at fair value
through prefit or loss - - - - - - - -
Receivables from money market - - - - - - - -
Financial assets at fair value - - 555.149  2.180.495 1.159.336 - 3,804,980
through other comprehensive
income
Loans = 6,508,562 2.367.022 9.758.032 - - 18.633.616
Financial assets measured at - - - - - - -
amortized cost
Other assets ©) - 105.405 68,664 30.374 - - 2.657.111 2.861.554
Total assets 401.864 7764720 2.435.686  10.343.555 2,180,495 1.159.336 2.657.111 26.942.767
Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - - - - - -
Other deposits - - - - - - - -
Other funds - 2.193.637 794.937 6.249.395 - - - 9.237.969
Funds from money market - 609.008 - - - - - 609.008
Issued securities - £26.133 | 408.783 4,087.282 1286271 412.351 - 8.020.820
Miscellaneous payables 1.657.621 - - - - - - 1.657.621
Other liabilities 1.948.408 3.508.342 §7.506 15.042 - - 1.858.051 7.417.349

3.606.029 7.137.120 2.291.226  10.351.719 1.286.271 412.351 1.858.051 26.942.767

Total liahilities

Liguidity gap (3.204.165) 627.600 144.460 -8.164 §94.224 746.985 799.060 -
31 December 2024

Total assets 282.930 7.314.209 1 B6R.509 4.847.020 1.029.400 £8.755 1.094 461 16,525.284
Total liabilities 1.032.553 3.110.579 1.313.329 3.264.622 4.145.580 - 3.658.621 16.525.284

(1) Cash on hand, bank deposits, prepaid expenses except for miscellaneous receivables, miscellaneous payables, demand funds and
temporary accounts are stated in demand column.

(2} Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other asset are stated in undistributed column, Provision
expense, deferred rax liabilities and equity arc stated in undistributed column,

) Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other assets are presented in other assets.

) Derivative financial liabilities, provisions, funds current period tax expense, deferred tax liabilities and equity are presented in other

s, current period tax

liabilities.
6) Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSI

Explanations on leverage ratio

TION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

As of 30 June 2025, the leverage ratio of the Bank is calculated as 8.26%. This ratio is above the minimum ratio

which is 3%.

Current period

Prior period

30 June 2025 31 December 2024"
Balance sheet assets
1 Balance sheet assets (excluding derivative financial assets and credit
derivatives, including collaterals) 23.644.316 14.782.289
2 Assets deducted from Core capital (205.833) (120.456)
3 Total risk amount of balance sheet assets (sum of lines 1 and 2) 23.438.483 14.661.833
Derivative financial assets and credit derivatives
4 Cost of replenishment for derivative financial assets and credit derivatives - -
5 anenltia! credit risk amount of derivative financial assets and credit 500.726 710,121
derivatives
6 Total risk amount of derivative financial assets and credit derivatives (sum
of lines 4 and 5) 500.726 710.121
Financing transactions secured by marketable security or commodity
7 Risk amount of financing transactions secured by marketable security or
commodity 1.900.686 746.895
8 Risk amount arising from intermediary transactions - -
9 Total risk amount of financing transactions secured by marketable security
or commodity (sum of lines 7 and 8) 1.900.686 746.895
Off-balance sheet transactions
10 Gross nominal amount of off-balance sheet transactions 14.935.897 18.224.048
11 (Correction amount due to multiplication with credit conversion rates) - -
12 Total risk of off-balance sheet transactions (sum of lines 10 and 11) 14.935.897 18.224.048
Capital and total risk
13 Capital 3.366.115 2.566.392
14 Total risk amount (sum of lines 3, 6, 9 and 12) 40.775.792 34.342.927
Leverage ratio
15 Leverage ratio 8.26 7.47

" Represents three-month average amounts

Transactions carried out on behalf of customers, items held in trust

None.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
IX. Explanations on risk management

The notes and related explanations prepared in accordance with the “Comm uniqué Regarding Risk Manag
by Banks” published in the Official Gazette numbered 29511 on 23 October 2015 are as follows:

ement

a) Risk management approach and weighted risk amounts

1. The Bank’s Risk Management Approach

The Bank’s risk management approach includes establishing a healthy risk management system,
including human resources, information technology infrastructure, risk assessment models, regulations,
procedures, application instructions and reports, and fulfilling all requirements for its operation, creating
an integrated risk management based on risk and return. Accordingly, the Bank ensures relevant policies,
procedures and sets limits, and risk management activities are established and defined in accordance
with internal and external legislation. The Bank has established the system and infrastructure for the
measurement and management of the risks it is exposed to in accordance with its risk profile and
operating environment. Duties, authorities and responsibilities within the scope of the risk management
system are fulfilled and satisfied in accordance with the legislation and internal procedures.

The Board of Directors of the Bank has sole responsibility to establish the risk management system and
monitor its effectiveness. The Board of Directors realises its oversight responsibility through the Audit

Committee and other relevant committees.

The operating activities of the Bank should be carried out in a manner that does not exceed the internal
and legal capital limits and the risk appetite limits determined by the Board of Directors. Risk
governance model includes three lines of defense consisting of: The risk-taking units at the first level,
responsible for assessing and minimizing risks for a given level of return (level 1). Risk Management
Unit. at the second level, identifies, monitors, controls, quantifies risk, provides appropriate tools and
methodologies, provides coordination and assistance; measures risk adjusted performance across the
business lines; reports to appropriate levels and proposcs mitigation measures, being supported by
business lines, where the risk is actually created, and specialized units (level 2). Internal Audit — provides
the independent review function (level 3).

“Risk appetite” is a high-level determination of how much risk a bank is willing to accept taking into
account the risk/return attributes.

The Bank applies audit and control mechanisms to determine that processes are carried out in accordance
with the Bank's policies and procedures, within the procedures and principles determined by the Board
of Directors, and are reported in a correct manner to the key management personnel.

Operating activities implemented within internal systems are used as instruments to identify weaknesses
in risk management processes, policies and procedures and to detect transactions that are contrary to the
limits, policies and procedures. Thus, the “Internal Audit Department™, “Internal Control Department™
and “Risk Management Department”, which operate directly under the Board of Directors, continue
their activities in coordination with other departments and key management personnel.

In accordance with the risk management activities of the Bank, the evaluations regarding risk
management are realised on a monthly basis to identify, measure and manage risks and the results are
submitted to the Board of Directors.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAG

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

a) Risk management approach and weighted risk amounts (continued)

2) Overview of risk weighted assets

EMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Minimum Minimum
Capital Capital
Risk-Weighted Assets _Requirements Requirements
Current  Prior period Current Prior period
period period
1 Credit risk (excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR) 16.269,153 8.797.938 1.301.532 703.835
2 Standardized approach (SA) 16.269.153 8.797.938 1.301.532 703.835
3 Internal rating-based (IRB) approach - - - -
4 Counterparty credit risk 249.548 312120 19.964 24.970
5 Standardized approach for counterparty credit risk (SACCR) 249.548 312,120 19.964 24970
6 Internal model method (IMM) G M - =
7 Basic risk weight approach (o internal models” equity position in the banking account - - = -
8 Investments made in collective investment companies — look-through approach - - 2 -
9 Tnvestments made in collective investment companies ~mandate-based approach - - - =
10 Investments made in collective nvestment companies — 1250% weighted risk approach - - = -
11 Settlement risk 5 = - S
12 Securitization positions in banking accounts - - - -
13 IRB ratings-based approach (RBA) . - = =
14 IRB Supervisory Formula Approach (SFA) - - -
15 SAssimplified supervisory formula approach (SSFA) - - . 5
16 Market risk 300.269 596.475 24.022 47.718
17 Standardized approach (SA) 300.269 596.475 24022 47.718
18 Internal model approaches (IMM) - - = -
19 Operational risk 2.307.423 1.505.071 184.594 120.406
20 Basic indicator approach 2.307.423 1.505.071 184.594 120.406
21 Standard approach = N - =
22 Advanced measurcment approach = - .
23 The amount of the discount threshold under the equily {subject to a 250% risk weight) - - - 5
24 Floor adjustment . 5 - _
25 Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23424) 19.126.393 11.211.604 1.530.112 896.929
b.  Credit risk explanations
1.  Credit risk mitigation techniques — overview
Financial Exposure
Exposures guarantees, secured b
secured by of which cred
Exposures collateral, Exposures secured Exposures derivative
unsecured of Exposures of which  secured by amount secured by of whic
(according secured by secured financial credit secure
Current period to TAS) collateral amount guarantees derivatives amour
1 Loans 24.777.620 48.339 48.339 - - =
2 Debt Securities 3.595.167 - - - - -
3 Total 28.372.787 48.339 48.339 - - -
4 Of which defaulted - - - - - -
Financial Exposur¢
Exposures guarantees, secured b
secured by of which cred
Exposures collateral, Exposures secured Exposures derivative
unsecured of  Exposures of which  secured by amount of whie
(according secured by secured financial secure
Prior period to TAS) collateral amount guarantees amour
1 Loans 16.901.316 79.094 38.983 - -
2 Debt Securities 1.084.632 - - - -
3 Total 17.985.948 79.094 38.983 - -
4 Of which defaulted - - - - -
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

b. Credit risk explanations (continued)
2.Standardised approach — Credit risk exposure and credit risk mitigation (CRM) effects

*) unless otherwise indicated.)

AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Exposures before credit
conversion factor and CRM

Exposures post-credit

conversion factor and CRM

RWA and RWA density

Current period

Asset ¢lasses

On-balance Off-balance
sheet amount  sheel amount

On-balance

sheet amount

Off-balance
sheet amount

RWA RWA densit

1 Exposures ta central governments or central banks 4.754.897 ) 4.754.897 ) .
2 Exposures to regional governments or local
authorities - - - -
3 Receivables from administrative units and non-
commercial enterprises - - - -
4 Exposures to multilateral development banks - - - - -
S Exposures to international organisations - - - - -
6 Receivables from banks and brokerage houses §78.261 1.717.538 878.261 1.586.269 1.062,149 6,4
7 Exposures to corporales 16.848.707 4.743.552 16.848.707 2.910.790 12.991.133 78.7
% Retail exposures - - - - -
9 Exposures secured by residential property - - - - =
10 Exposures secured by commercial real estate - - - - -
11 Past-due loans - - - - -
12 Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - - - -
13 Collateralized securities - - - .
14 Exposures to institutions and corporates with a
short-term credit assessment - - = -
Exposures in the form of units or shares in
15 collective investment undertakings (CIUs) - - - =
16 Other assets 2.521,175 2.521.175 2.441.794 14,8
17 Investments in equities - - - -
18 Total 25.003.040 6.461.090 25.003.040 4.497.059 16.495.076 100%
Exposures before credit Exposures post-credit
Prior period conversion factor and CRM conversion factor and CRM RWA and RWA density
On-balance
On-balance  Off-balance shicel Off-balance RWA  RWA density
sheet amount sheet amount sheet amount :
Assel classes amount
1
Exposures to central governments or central banks 1.565.536 B 1.565.536 ) ) .
2 Exposures to regional governments or local
authorities - - - - - -
3 Receivables from administrative units and non-
commercial enterprises - - - - -
4 Exposures to multilateral development banks - - -
5  Exposures (o international organisations - - - - = -
6 Receivables from banks and brokerage houses 968.117 776,717 968,117 633,359 609.263 6.70
7 Exposures to corporates 10.675.170 4.029.286 10.675.170 2 283.507 7.825.384 86,12
8 Retail exposures - - - - - -
9 Exposures secured by residential property - - - - - -
10 Exposures secured by commercial real estate - - - - -
Il Past-due loans - - - - -
12 Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - - - - -
13 Collateralized securities - - - - - -
14 Exposures o institutions and corporates with a
short-term credit assessment - - - - - -
Exposures in the form of units or shares in
15 collective investment undertakings (CIUs) - - = -
16 Other assets 749,943 749.943
17 Investments in equities - - = -
18 Total 13.958.766 4.806.003  13.958.766 2.917.266
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

b. Credit risk explanations (continued)

3. Standardised Approach — Exposures by asset classes and risk weight

Current period
Total
risk
25 amou
Asset Classes / Risk Weight 0% 10%  20% %  35%  50%i(1) 75% 100% 150%  200% Other  nt(2)
Exposures to central govemnments or ceniral banks 4‘75,;,4 B . ) } ) i i i i } i 4595;' 4
Exposures to regional governments or local
authorities - = = B 2 5 - - = . .
Receivables from administrative units and non-
commercial enterprises - - - - " = X i 2 = - =
Exposures to multilateral development banks - - - - - _ = 5 =
Exposures to international organisations . - s 5 = 5 z & . - - -
Receivables from banks and brokerage houses A ) 5(;';'0 ) £ 8?;‘47 ) = 3 . ) 2:36{’]4
Exposutes to corporates 16.229 - 1.465. - 11.159.6 - 711823 - - - 19.75
: 395 38 5 9497
Retail exposures - . - . = i = s . - - =
Exposures secured by residential property - - s “ . - - = i . . .
Exposures secured by commercial real estate - - 3 2 z a - “ = 2 & 2
Past-due loans 2 = - = - s & = - : " B
Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - = < = B = . . = - 3 <
Collateralized securties - - . - E= 2 5 % - - - -
Exposures to inslitutions and corporates with a
short-term credit assessment - : g . = . . - = ] = E
Exposures in the form of units or shares in
collective
investment undertakings (ClUs) - - - . i = & - - % =
Investments in equities = 3 5 : . - # = @ = . -
) . : 5 2
Other receivables ™38 - g e X . = *‘4‘1' 79 2-15;5‘ :
4 850.50 - 2032 - - 13.057.1 - 9.560.02 - - - 29.50
Total 7 448 15 9 0.0%9

(1) Collateralised by mortgages on real estate

(2) Amount after Credit Conversion Ratio (‘CRR”) and Credit Risk Reduction ("CRR”)
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Prior period
Total
risk
10 25 amou
Asset Classes / Risk Weight 1% % 20% %  35%  50%(1) 75% 100% 150%  200% Other ni(2)
Exposures Lo central governments or central banks ] '5(:'53 A ) ) ) i i i i ) i 155’;?
Exposures to regional governments or local
authorities - - i g = “ . = - B = s
Receivables from administrative units and non-
commercial enterprises - - - - » » - . = 5 i .
Exposures to multilateral development banks - - E ¢ - e 4 = . - - 2
Exposures to international organisations - - - - - 5 z e . . -
; - - 2 - 682119 g 105.415 - - - 1601
Receivables from banks and brokerage houses 813.942 476
16.229 - - - - - - - 12.95
Exposures to corporates 1.165.5 8.370.07 3.407.24 9.077
35 2 1
Retail exposures - - - e 5 . s - . = & =
Exposures secured by residential property - 5 - - - i & 4 5 - = -
Exposures secured by commercial real estate - - - 2 . " 3 > = 5 = =
Past-due loans - - - - = = & = - - = =
Higher-risk categories by the Agency Board - 2 - - - - 3 X 4 3 s =
Collateralized securities - - - 2 4 @ o . z = 2 s
Exposures to institutions and corporates with a
shart-term credit assessment - - - = = = = 5 = % " .
Exposures in the form of units or shares in
collective
investment undertakings (CIUs) - - - - - 2 . . 3 - 2
Investments in egquities - - - - g = = = g = 5 -
Other receivables NNAw - . . B . E 652.517 . ” : ?13‘9
- - - 9.052.19 - 4.165.17 o - -
1.679.19 1.979.4 1 3 16.87
Total 1 77 6.032

(1) Collateralised by mortgages on real estate
(2) Amount after Credit Conversion Rano (*CRR”) and Credit Risk Reduction ("CRR™}

d.
1.

Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR")

Qualitative disclosures regarding counterparty credit risk

The counterparty credit risk is defined as the risk that the counterparty, which is the other party of a transaction
that has obligations on both parties, will default before the final payment in the cash flow of the relevant

transaction.

Counterparty credit risk arises when financing securities transactions such as over-the-counter derivative
financial instruments and reverse repos. The Bank monitors the counterparty credit risk considering the
application of limits approved by the Board of Directors on an institution/organization basis.

Capital requirement is calculated for the counterparty credit risk arising from the transactions included in the
accounts which are as follows:

e Over-the-counter derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives,

e Securities or commodity-based securities or commodity borrowings or lending transactions
included in the portfolio, and repo and reverse repurchase agreements, s By

Th
L
3 - ¥

e Securities transactions on credit and transactions with long settlement periods
Replenishment costs are measured and managed using yield curves whose current value

conditions.
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ITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR”) (continued)

Analysis of counterparty credit risk exposure by approach

Current period — 30 June 2025

Replacement

cost

Potential
future
exposure

Standardised Approach (for derivatives
Internal Model Method (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities or
EMTIA lending or borrowing transactions,
transactions with a long settlement time,
Marketable Security transactions with credit)
Simple Approach for credit risk mitigation
(for derivatives, Repo Transactions,
Marketable Securities or EMTIA lending or
borrowing transactions, transactions with a
long settlement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

Comprehensive Approach for credit risk
mitigation (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities or
EMTIA lending or borrowing transactions,
transactions with a long settlement time,
Marketable Security transactions with credit)
VaR for for derivatives, Repo Transactions,
Marketable Securities or EMTIA lending or
borrowing transactions, transactions with a
long settlement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit

Total

204.443

48

188.806

Alpha used

for

computing
regulatory

exposure at

EEPE default

Exposure
at default
post
CRM

RWA

1.4

550.549

16.297

myu\mﬂurn
Lan )

233.251

16.297

49.548
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

d.  Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR”) (continued)

2. Analysis of counterparty credit risk exposure by approach (continued)

Replacement
Prior period — 31 December 2024 cost

Alpha used
for Exposure
computing

Potential regulatory
future exposure at
exposure EEPE default

at
default
post
CRM

RWA

Standardised Approach (for derivatives 289.902
Internal Model Method (for derivatives,
Repo Transactions, Marketable Securities
or EMTIA lending or borrowing
transactions, transactions with a long
settlement time, Marketable Security
transactions with credit)

3 Simple Approach for credit risk mitigation
(for derivatives, Repo Transactions,
Marketable Securities or EMTIA lending
or borrowing transactions, transactions
with a long settlement time, Marketable
Security transactions with credit)

4 Comprehensive Approach for credit risk
mitigation (for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities or
EMTIA lending or borrowing transactions,
transactions with a long settlement time,
Marketable Security transactions with
credit)

5 VaR for for derivatives, Repo
Transactions, Marketable Securities or
EMTIA lending or borrowing transactions.
transactions with a long settlement time,
Marketable Security transactions with
credit

6 Total

P -

3. Credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) capital charge

180.067

1.4

657.957

13.862

298.258

13.862

312.120

Current period

Prior period

Exposure at

Exposure at

default default

post-CRM RWA post-CRM ~ RWA

Total portfolios subject to the Advanced CVA capital charge - - " -

1 (i) Value at Risk (VaR) component (including the 3xmultiplier) - - B -
(ii) Stressed VaR component (including the

2 3xmultiplier) - - - -

3 3 All portfolios subject to the Standardised CVA capital charge SIRA5Y 9.857 858.485 19.370

4 17757 9.857 858.485 19370

Total subject to the CVA capital charge
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)
d.  Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR”) (continued)

4. Standardised approach of CCR exposures by risk classeses and risk weights

Current period — 30 June 2025
Tota
credi
Risk Classes/Risk Weight 0% 10% 20% 50% 75%  100%  150%  Other exposur

Claims from central governments and central banks - -
Claims from regional and local governments -
Claims from administration and non-commercial entity - -
Claims from multilateral development banks -

Claims from international organizations - - - -
Claims from institutions = - 91,469 5 - & - . a1.46'
Corporates - - - . - 442.585 - - 442.58
Retail portfolios - = = » - - = =
Other claims - - - = = . . -
Total - - 91.469 - - 442.585 - - 534.05:
Prior period — 31 December 2024
Tot
cred
Risk Classes/Risk Weight 0% 10% 20% 50% 75%  100%  150%  Other exposu
Claims from central governments and central banks - - - . - 2 - -
Claims from regional and local governments - - 5 - 5 , - :
Claims from administration and non-commercial entity - - - - - = - 2
Claims from multilateral development banks - a . 2 J = s i
Claims from international organizations - - = = = # - -
Claims from institutions - - 5064 10.992 = = = = 16.0
Corporates - - 97.339  544.563 - 13862 - - 6557
Retail portfolios - 2 = - = = . .
Other claims z “ = - - - S =
_Total - - 102.403 555.554 - 13.862 - - 671.8
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

d.
54

Explanations on counterparty credit risk (*CCR”) (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

Exposures to central counterparties (“CCP”)

Current period
Exposure at default
(post-CRM) RWA
1 Exposure to Qualified Central Counterparties (QCCPs) (total) 32.791 2.623
2 Exposures for trades at QCCPs (excluding initial margin and
default fund contributions); of which 32.791 2.623
3 (i) OTC Derivatives - -
“ (ii) Exchange-traded Derivatives 32.791 2.623
5 (iii) Securities financing transactions . -
6  (iv) Netting sets where cross-product netting has been approved - =
7 Segregated initial margin # =
8 Non-segregated initial margin - -
9 Pre-funded default fund contributions 660.511 660.511
10 Unfunded default fund contributions - -
11 Exposures to non-QCCPs (total) - -
12 Exposures for trades at non-QCCPs (excluding initial margin and

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

default fund contributions); of which)
(i) OTC Derivatives
(ii) Exchange-traded Derivatives
(iii) Securities financing transactions
(iv) Netting sets where cross-product netting has been approved
Segregated initial margin
Non-segregated initial margin
Pre-funded default fund contributions
Unfunded default fund contributions
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMEN

d. Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR") (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

5. Exposures to central counterparties (“CCP”) (continued)

T OF THE BANK (continued)

Prior period

Exposure at default

(post-CRM) RWA
1 Exposure to Qualified Central Counterparties (QCCPs)
(total) 103.028 8.242
2 Exposures for trades at QCCPs (excluding initial margin and
default fund contributions); of which 103.028 8.242
3 (i) OTC Derivatives - =
4 (ii) Exchange-traded Derivatives 78.467 6.277
5 (iii) Securities financing transactions 24.561 1.965
6 (iv) Netting sets where cross-product netting has been
approved - =
7 Segregated initial margin 3 .

8
9
10

11
12

13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20

Non-segregated initial margin
Pre-funded default fund contributions
Unfunded default fund contributions
Exposures to non-QCCPs (total)
Exposures for trades at non-QCCPs (excluding initial margin
and default fund contributions); of which)
(i) OTC Derivatives
(ii) Exchange-traded Derivatives
(iii) Securities financing transactions
(iv) Netting sets where cross-product netting has been
approved
Segregated initial margin
Non-segregated initial margin
Pre-funded default fund contributions
Unfunded default fund contributions

6. Collaterals for counterparty credit risk (“CCR”)

Other transaction

Derivative financial instrument collaterals collaterals
Collaterals received Collaterals given

Non- Non- Collaterals | Collaterals
Current period Segregated | segregated |Segregated | segregated received given
Cash-domestic currency - - 140.877 -
Cash-foreign currency - - - -
Government bonds - domestic - - 519.634 -
Government bonds - other - = - -
Public bonds/bills - - - -
Corporate bonds/bills - - - -
Equity securities - - - -
Other collaterals - = -
Total - - 660.511 -
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

d.
6.

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)
Explanations on counterparty credit risk (*“CCR”) (continued)

Collaterals for counterparty credit risk (“CCR”) (continued)

Derivative financial instrument collaterals Other transaction
Collaterals received Collaterals given collaterals
Non- Non- Collaterals | Collaterals
Prior period Segregated | segregated | Segregated segregated | received given
Cash-domestic currency - - - 5.994 - -
Cash-foreign currency - - - - - -
Government bonds - domestic - B - 43.588 - -
Government bonds - other - - - s . -
Public bonds/bills - - - - - -
Corporate bonds/bills - = - - - -
Equity securities - - - - - -
Other collaterals - - - - - -
Total - - - 49 582 - &
X. Explanations on securitisation
None.
Explanations on market risk
1. Qualitative disclosure requirements related to ma rket risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, commodity risk, interest

rates, and market prices of stocks. The risk is defined as the possibility of loss that the bank's on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet positions within the framework of financial risk management. The Bank aims to keep the
foreign exchange position balanced and minimize liquidity and interest rate risks in order to hedge against risks
that may occur in the markets. The amount subject to market risk is calculated on a monthly basis in accordance
with the “Standard Method” and is included in the capital adequacy standard ratio calculation. The Board of
Directors considers the necessary measures to maintain an effective internal control mechanism and risk
management system within the Bank and closely monitors the development of market risk.

The Bank's policies regarding market risk management are determined by Treasury and Risk Management. The
Bank determines as its priority that the risks faced by the Bank are within the limits required by the legislation
and proportional to the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank's risk appetite is determined by the Board of Directors.
The Bank has internal “risk limits” determined according to its portfolio structure and risk appetite, and
compliance with these limits is monitored by controllers determined according to the triple mechanism.

The market risk within the Bank is calculated within the framework of “Regulation on Banks' Equity™ and
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks™ under “Standard Method™.
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2. Market risk under standardised approach

Current period Prior period
RWA RWA
Outright products

1 Interest rate risk (general and specific) 248.838 367.888
2 Equity risk (general and specific) - -
3 Foreign exchange risk 50.713 228.587
4 Commodity risk 718 -

Options :
5 Simplified approach = =
6  Delta-plus method S =
7  Scenario approach - -
8 Securitisation - =
Total 300.269 596.475

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

XII. Explanations on operating segments
The Bank has operating activities in “Commercial and Corporate Banking”, “Treasury” and “Financial
Institutions and Investment Banking” (Other).

In accordance with the commercial/corporate banking activities, Destek Yatirim Bankast is providing non-cash
loans to institutions and organizations operating in all economic sectors through commercial, investment and
retail banking, opening letters of credit, financing sectors with national and international banking methods,
advising domestic and foreign capital to invest in Tiirkiye. The Bank has the authority to operate in domestic
and international capital and money markets, including in precious metal and metal exchanges, and operates as

an insurance agency.

The Bank has forward foreign exchange transactions, derivative transactions and securities transactions under
its treasury operations.

The Bank has operational structure on the customer basis in order to satisfy the wide variety of financial
requirements of its customers.
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Retail Total
banking Treasury Other  operations
Current period - 30 June 2025
1.923.279 451.673 8.397 2.383.349

Interest income

Interest expenses 674.043 200,392 874.435

1.923.279 (222.370) (191.995)  1.508.914

Net interest income
Net fees and commissions income 34.439 (3.115) 10.207 41.531
Dividend income - = - B
Trading income/(losses) (Net) - (436.986) - (436.986)
Other operating income < 41.692 41.692
Total operating income 1.957.718 (662.471) (140.096) 1.155.151
Provision for loans - - 135.661 135.661
Other operating expenses (*) - - 270.573 270.573
Profit before tax 1.957.718 (662.471) (546.330) 748.917
Provision for taxes - - 284.635 284.635
Net profit for the period 1.957.718 (662.471) (830.965) 464.282
Segment assets 18.633.616 5.652.040 1.357.111  25.642.767
= - 1.300.000 1.300.000

Subsidiaries and associates
Undistributed assets = 5 - =
18.633.616 5.,652.040 2.657.111  26.942.767

Total assets — 30 June 2025

Segment liabilities 2.806.500 17.982.878 2.907.130  23.696.508

Undistributed liabilities - & %
3.246.259 3.246.259

Equity - -
Total liabilities — 30 June 2025 2.806.500 17.982.878 6.153.389  26.942.767

(*) Other operating expenses include personnel expenses.

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

XI1. Explanations on operating segments (continued)

Retail Total
banking Treasury Other  operations

Prior period - 30 June 2024
477.577 359478 273 837.328

Interest income

Interest expenses - (177.001) (88.295)  (265.296)

477.577 182.477 (88.022) 572.032

Net interest income

Net fees and commissions income 11.903 (3.288) 30 8.645
Dividend income - - - -
Trading income/(losses) (Net) - 535544 - 535.544
Other operating income - - 1.772 1.772
Total operating income 489.480 714.733 (86.220)  1.117.993
Provision for loans - - (76.588) (76.588)
Other operating expenses (¥) - - (123.759)  (123.759)
Profit before tax 489.480 714.733 (286.567) 917.646
Provision for taxes - - (276.441)  (276.441)
Net profit for the period 489.480 714.733 (563.008) 641.205
Segment assets 12.132.895 3.587.831 504.558  16.225.284
Subsidiaries and associates B . 300.000 300.000
Undistributed assets - - -

Total assets — 31 December 2024
Segment liabilities
Undistributed liabilities

Equity & N
Total liabilities — 31 December 2024 , 2.953.813 9.842.846

(*) Other operating expenses include personnel expenses.

12.132.895 _ 3.587.831 804558  16.525.284
2953813 9.842.846 :
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SECTION FIVE
INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
I. Explanations and notes related to assets
1. Information related to cash and cash equivalents and the account of the Central Bank of the Republic of
Tiirkiye (the “CBRT”)
1.1. Cash and cash equivalents and the CBRT

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

Cash - 78.962 58 33815
The CBRT 3.619 873.781 2.798 469.815
Other - 419 . 63.553
Total 3.619 953,162 2.856 567.183

1.2. Information related to the account of the CBRT

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

Unrestricted Demand Deposits 3619 19 2.798 1iF
Unrestricted Time Deposits - - - -
Reserve Requirement - 873.762 - 469.798
Total 3.619 873.781 2.798 469.815

1.3. Information related to the reserve requirement

The Bank established in Tiirkiye or operating in Tiirkiye by opening branches are subject to the “Communiqué
Regarding Required Provisions numbered 2013/15” of the Central Bank of Tiirkiye. The amount to be
calculated as a result of deducting the deductible items specified in the aforementioned communiqué from the
total domestic liabilities of the banks and the deposits/borrower funds from Tiirkiye on behalf of their branches

abroad constitute their liabilities subject to reserve requirements.

As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the required reserve rates for liabilities denominated in TL is
between 3% and 8% according to their maturities and the reserve rates for foreign currency denominated
liabilities are between 5% and 25% for deposit and other foreign currency liabilities according to their

maturities.
2 Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss given or blocked as collateral

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

3. Information on derivative financial assets

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Forward transactions 188.367 - 287.448 -
Swap transactions 3.181 12.895 - 2.455
Futures transactions = - - -
Options - - B -
Other - . - -
Total 191.548 12.895 287.448 2.455
Information on banks and other financial institutions
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Banks 256.483 339.353 771.110 200.056
Domestic 256.483 4.293 770.097 21
Foreign 335.060 1.013 200.035
Foreign head offices and branches - - - -
Total 256.483 339.353 771.110 200.056

57




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONiM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ( “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

1. Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)
5. Information on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
5.1. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Debt Securities 3.794.500 100.480 1.067.167 88.756

Quoted at Stock Exchange 3.794.500
Unquoted at Stock Exchange
Common Shares/Equity Securities -
Quoted at Stock Exchange -
Ungquoted at Stock Exchange -
Impairment (-)

100.480 1.067.167 88.756

Total 3.794.500 100.480 1.067.167 88.756

5.2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income subject to repurchase agreements
and provided as collateral/blocked

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Repurchase agreements 525.957 100.480 93.493 88.756
Collateralised/blocked 3.251.326 - 497.839 -
Total 3.777.283 100.480 591.332 88.756
6. Information on loans
6.1.  Loans and advances to shareholders and employees of the Bank
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Cash loans Non-cash Cash loans Non-cash
loans loans
Direct lending to sharcholders 8.783.795 3.434 7.635.355 4.054
Legal entity 8.783.795 3.434 7.635.355 4.054
Natural person = . . "

Indirect lending to shareholders -
Loans to employees -

Total 8.783.795 3.434
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

L. Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)
6. Information on loans (continued)

6.2. Information on the first and second loans and other receivables including loans that have been
restructured or rescheduled

Current period
Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Restructured Loans and
Receivables

Standard Loans and Loans and

Loans Receivables Not Receivables

and Other Subject to with Revised
Receivables restructuring Contract Terms Refinance
Non-specialized loans 18.633.616 - - -
Loans given to enterprises 105.419 - = -
Export loans - - - -
Import loans - - - -
Loans given to financial sector 12.579.779 - - -

Consumer loans
Credit cards -
Other 5948418 - - F
Specialized loans -

Other receivables -
Total 18.633.616 = o -

Prior period

Loans and other receivables under follow-up
Restructured Loans and

Receivables
Standard Loans and Loans and
Loans Receivables Not Receivables
and Other Subject to with Revised
Receivables restructuring  Contract Terms _ Refinance
Non-specialized loans 12.132.895 - - -

Loans given to enterprises
Export loans -
Import loans

Loans given to financial sector 10.047.167

Consumer loans - =
Credit cards 5 .
Other 2.085.728 s

Specialized loans

Other receivables -
Total 12.132.895 -
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

L Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)
6. Information on loans (continued)

6.2. Information on the first and second loans and other receivables including loans that have been
restructured or rescheduled (continued)

Curent period Prior period
Loans Under Standard  Loans Under
standard Loans Follow-up Loans Follow-up
General Loan Loss Provisions 391.188 - 255.527 -
12-Month Expected Credit Losses - - - -
Significant Increase in Credit Risk - - - -
Total 391.188 - 255.527 -

Changes in number of extensions on loans
None.
Changes in period of extension on loans
None.

6.3. Maturity analysis of cash loans

Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Standard Loans

loans Loans not subject to restructuring restructured

Short-term loans 18.570.164 - -
Medium and long-term loans 63.452 - -
Total 18.633.616 - -

Prior period Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Standard Loans

loans Loans not subject to restructuring restructured

Short-term loans 12.085.031 - =
Medium and long-term loans 47.864 - -
Total 12.132.895 - =

6.4. Information on consumer loans, personal credit cards, personnel loans and personnel credit cards

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I. Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

6. Information on loans (continued)
6.5. Information on commercial installment loans and corporate credit cards

None.

6.6. Loans according to types of borrowers

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Public s -
Private 18.633.616 12.132.895
Total 18.633.616 12.132.895

6.7. Distribution of domestic and foreign loans

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Domestic Loans 18.633.616 12.132.895
Foreign Loans = .
Total 18.633.616 12.132.895

6.8. Loans to associates and subsidiaries

None.
6.9. Specific provisions or default accounted for loans (Stage 3)

None.
6.10. Information on non-performing loans and restructured receivables

None.

Information on total non-performing loans

None.
Information on non-performing loans denominated in foreign currencies

None.
6.11. Loan customer concentration of gross and net amounts of non-performing loans

None.

o Information on financial assets at amortized cost

None.

8. Information on investments in associates (Net)

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to assets ( continued)

Information on investments in subsidiaries

Effective ownership interest

Subsidiary Country of Effective ownership interest held
incorporation by Destek Yatirnnm Bankasi- held by other sharcholders
(City) Voting rights (%)

Destek Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S.* istanbul/Trkiye

100

* I accordance with the decision of the "' Extraordinary General Assembly”" on 27 September 2024, the title of Destek Mentkul Degerler
Anonim Sirketi was changed to *Desiek Yatorun Menkul Degerler Anonim Sirketi”.

Subsidiary Total assets Equity Current period profit Prior period profit
Destek Yaunm Menkul Degerler AS. 2.029.220 1.300.000 22.997 25441
30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Banks

Insurance companies
Leasing companies
Financing companies
Other subsidiaries

1.300.000®

300.000

Total

1.300.000

300.000

(*) In accordance with the decision of the “General Assembly”.
share capital by TL 1.000.000.

Information on investments in joint ventures

None.

Information on finance lease receivables (net)

None.

Information on property, plant and equipment

Destek Yatirtm Menkul Degerler Anonim Sirketi increased its current

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the C ommuniqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
8 Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

13. Information on intangible assets

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Com muniqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Information on investment properties

Nomne.

Information on tax assets

Information on current period tax assets
None.

Information on the amount of deferred tax assets in the balance sheet, including deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and tax deductions and exemptions

None.
Information on non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

None.

Information on other assets

If other assets account exceeds 10% of total assets excluding the commitments included in the off-
balance sheet items, information given about components of other assets account that exceeds 20% of

the individual asset item in the unconsolidated balance sheet

Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets of the balance sheet.

63



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

II. Explanations and notes related to liabilities
The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the liability of the unconsolidated balance sheet prepared by the
Bank are as follows.

1. Information on deposits
Since the Bank was established as an “Investment Bank™, the Bank has no deposits or collected funds.

2. Derivative financial liabilities
2.1.  Table for negative differences for the portion of derivative financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

Forward transactions 32.308 - 37.918 -
Swap transactions 11.384 71.389 6.255 1.069
Futures transactions = - 7 -
Options - - - -
Other - ” - B
Total 43.692 71.389 44.173 1.069

3. Information due to money market

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Domestic transactions 408.648 80.750 4,273 169.937
Financial institutions 400.514 225 - -
Qther institutions 6.508 39.653 1.622 02.948
Natural person 1.626 40.872 2.651 76.989
Foreign transactions 96 119.514 - 3.904
Financial institutions s : - -
Other institutions 96 119.514 - 3.904
Natural person - - - -
Total 408.744 200.264 4.273 173.841
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
IL Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

4. Information on banks and other financial institutions

4.1. Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

The CBRT a & g g
Domestic bank and institutions 5 “ = &
Foreign bank, institutions and funds - 9.237.969 - 5.047.682
Total - 0.237.969 - 5.047.682

4.2. Maturity analysis of borrowings

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC
Short-term - 3.526.246 - 1.225.695
Medium and long-term - 5.711.723 - 3.821.987
Total - 9.237.969 - 5.047.682
4.3. Information on securities issued (net)
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Bank bonds 476.273 - 253.828 -
Bonds and bills 398.843 6.733.353 129.155  4.188.825
Total 875.116 6.733.353 382.983 4.188.825
4.4. Information on borrower funds
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Domestic bank and institutions 876.452 773.861 518.575 1.954.766
Foreign bank, institutions and funds 795 1.155.392 5166 475.306
Total 877.247 1.929.253 523.741

5. If other liabilities account exceeds 10% of total assets excluding the commitments ing
balance sheet items, information given about components of other liabilities accoung
of the individual liabilities item in the unconsolidated balance sheet

As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, other liabilities do not exceed 10% of total lia8§li
sheet excluding the off-balance sheet items. 5
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In accordance with the BRSA Circular No. 24049440.010.06.02[5/1]-1 dated 2 February 2015, other liabilities
include “transfer” account balances in foreign exchange buying/selling and transfer transactions whose transfer

was not completed on 30 June 2025.
INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

IL. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
6. Information on lease liabilities (net)
In accordance with “TFRS 16 Leases™ effective from 1 January 2019, the difference between operating leases
and finance leases has been eliminated and the lease transactions have been disclosed under the “Lease
liabilities” as liability by lessees. As of 30 June 2025, the breakdown of the leases and relevant transactions
with lease agreement 1 year and over is as follows:
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Upto 1 year 5.706 1.267
1-4 years 61.889 20.371
4 years and over - -
Total 67.595 21.638
7. Information on hedging derivative financial instruments
None.
8. Information on provisions
8.1 General loan provisions
In accordance with the authorisation on 21 February 2022 from BRSA, the Bank calculates its general loan
provisions within the scope of the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation, not with the expected
credit losses under TFRS 9. As of 30 June 2025, the Bank calculated general loan provisions amounting to TL
391.188 for its first group loans and receivables (31 December 2024: TL 255.527).
2. Provision for currency exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency indexed loans and finance lease
receivables
None.
8.3. Information on provision for employee rights

According to Turkish Labor Law, the Bank is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has
completed at least one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for
military service, dies or who retires. The compensation amount equals to one month’s salary of an employee
for each year of service, but this amount is limited up to employment termination limit decided by law. The
reserve has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Bank arising
from the retirement of its employees. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the

calculation of the total liability:

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Provision for employment termination benefits 2.604

Provision for unused vacation 6.063

Provision for bonuses -

Provision for premiums and dividends -
8.667

Total
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
1I. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

Information on provisions (continued)

Information on other provisions

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Impairment of spot transactions - -
Provision for expense accruals 2219 3.088
Total 2.219 3.088

Information on current period tax expenses

Information on provision for taxes

As of 30 June 2025, after deducting the advance taxes paid during the period from the corporate tax, the
remaining corporate tax payable is amounting to TL 168.445 (31 December 2024: TL 170.546).

Information on taxes payable

30 June 2025

31 December 2024

Corporate tax payable 168.445 170.546
Securities income tax 10.433 3.011
Property income tax = .
Banking and insurance transaction tax 32.577 26.889
Foreign exchange transactions tax 248 186
VAT payable 1.071 758
Other " 8.626 4.011
Total 221.400 205.401

() Other includes, the amount of TL 7.813 is the income tax deducted from personn

amount of TL 178 is the stamp duty deducted from the allowances (31 December 2024: 91 TL), the

el expenses (31 December 2024: TL 3.877), the
amount of TL 429 is the income

tax to be paid (31 December 2024; TL 40), and the amount of TL 206 consists of other (31 December 2024: TL 3).
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
IL. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

9, Information on current period tax expenses (continued)

9.3. Information on premium

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Social Security Premiums — Employee -
4.326 3.245

Social Security Premiums — Employer

Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employee

Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium — Employer
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employee
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employer
Unemployment Insurance — Employee

Unemployment Insurance — Employer

Other

Total 4.601 3.477

9.4, Information on deferred tax

9.4.1. Information on deferred tax liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated balance sheet, as of deductible
temporary differences, tax losses and tax deductions and allowances
The Bank has calculated deferred tax assets based on the differences arising from “temporary differences”

between the accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the financial statements and the tax
legislation and reflected the deferred tax assets in the accompanying financial statements accordingly. As of

30 June 2025, the Bank has deferred tax liabilities amounting to TL 24.641 (31 December 2024: TL 57.157).
30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Cumulative temporary Deferred tax assets Cumulative temporary Deferred tax assets

differences /(liabilities) differences /(liabilities)

Unearned revenue 13.594 4.078 6.487 1.946
Provision for employee benefits 8.667 2.600 7.599 2.280
Discount on derivative transations 115.081 34.524 45.241 13.572
Valuation of TAS 16 3.332 1.000 2.131 639
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - - 55.202 16.561
Other 2.220 666 3.088 926
Total deferred tax assets 142.894 42.868 119.748 35.924
Discount on forward transactions (204.443) (61.333) (289.902) (86.971)
Depreciation and amortisation charges (20.767) (6.176) (20.548) (6.110)
Other - : . -
Total deferred tax liabilities (225.210) (67.509) (310.450) (93.081)

(190.702)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net (82.316) (24.641)
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

II. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
9.4. Information on deferred tax (continued)
10. Information on liabilities from non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
None.
11. Information on subordinated loans
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
Debt instruments to be included in the calculation of additional 412.351

capital borrowing instruments

Subordinated loans

412.351

Subordinated debt instruments

Debt instruments to be included in contribution capital calculation -

Subordinated loans -

Subordinated debt instruments -
412.351

Total

12.
12.1.

12.2,

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

* Realised in accordance with the authorisation issued by the CMB on 15 November 2024

Information on shareholders’ equity

Presentation of paid-in share capital

30 June 2025 31 December 2024
600.000 600.000

Common Stock

Amount of paid-in share capital, explanations as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied, if so the amount of registered share capital ceiling

As of 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has not adopted registered capital system.

Capital increases and sources in the current period and other information based on increased capital
shares

None (31 December 2024: TL 250.000).

Information on share capital increases from capital reserves during the current period

None.
Information on capital commitments, the purpose and the sources until the end of the fiscal year and
the subsequent interim period

None.

The effects of anticipations based on the financial figures for prior periods regarding the Bank’s income,
profitability and liquidity, and possible effects of these future assumptions on the Bank’s equity due to

uncertainties at these indicators

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I1. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
12. Information on shareholders’ equity (continued)
12.7. The summary information regarding the privileges granted to shares representing the share capital
None.
12.8. Information on securities value increase fund
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Securities at fair value through other comprehensive income (7.1 46) 12.085 (17.916) 10.588
Valuation (7.146) 17.264 (17.916) 15.126
Currency translation differences - - - -
Deferred tax = (5.179) . (4.538)
Total (7.146) 12.085 (17.916) 10.588
12.9. Information on profit reserves

In accordance with the decision of the General Assembly on 27 March 2025, the amount of retained earnings
TL 57.548 transferred to legal reserves and the amount of TL 1.093.419 transferred to other retained earnings

account within the total amount of TL 1.150.967.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments
The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the unconsolidated off-balance sheet commitments prepared by
the Bank are as follows.
1. Explanations on liabilities in off-balance sheet commitments

1.1 Type and amount of irrevocable commitments

1.2.

1.3

1.4.
1.4.1

None.
Non-cash loans including guarantees, bank acceptances, collaterals and others that are accepted as
financial commitments and other letter of credits

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Letter of guarantees 6.494.263 4.882.084
Bank acceptances and collaterals - =
Letter of credits = -
Other letter of guarantees for non-cash loans - 2
Total 6.494.263 4.882.084

Final and provisional letter of guarantees, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Final letters of guarantee 4.017.567 3.759.269
Provisional letters of guarantee 2.889 1313
Letters of guarantee for advances 206.561 382.563
Letters of guarantee given to custom offices 113.084 89.076
Other letter of guarantees for cash loans 2.154.162 649.663
Other letter of guarantees - -
Total 6.494.263 4.882.084

Information on non-cash loans

Total amount non-cash loans

30 June 2025 31 December 2024

Non-cash Loans Given against Cash Loans 2.154.163 649.663
With Original Maturity of | Year or Less Than 1 Year - -
With Original Maturity of More Than I Year 2.154.163 649.663

4.340.100 4.232.421

Other Non-cash Loans

Total 6.494.263 s 882.084
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
111. Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments (continued)

Information on non-cash loans (continued)

Information on risk concentration on a sector basis of the non-cash loans
The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial

Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Information on derivative transactions
3 Information on contingent liabilities and contingent assets

None.
Explanations on the activities carried out on behalf and account of other persons

None.

Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss

The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss prepared by the
Bank are as follows.

Information on interest income

Information on interest income on loans

30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC
Interest income on loans 1.467.657 455.622 256,395 221.182
Short-term loans 1.467.657 455.622 256.395 221.182
Medium and long-term loans - - - -
Interest on loans under follow-up - - g =
Premiums received - 4 = -
Total 1.467.657 455.622 256.395 221.182
Information on interest income on banks
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC
From the CBRT - 117 - 122
From Domestic Banks 48.790 987 108.886 21531
From Foreign Banks - - - -
From Headoffices and Branches Abroad - = - -
Total 48.790 1.104 108.886
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I11. Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments (continued)

1. Information on interest income (continued)

1.3. Information on interest income on marketable securities

30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 144,917 6.697 220452 5.625
Total 144.917 6.697 220.452 5.625

1.4 Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries

None.
2. Information on interest expenses
2.1. Information of interest expenses on borrowings
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC
From the CBRT - - - -
From Domestic Banks - - - -
From Foreign Banks - 230.457 - 14.304
From Headoffices and Branches Abroad . - - -
Total - 230.457 - 14.304
2.2 Information on interest expenses given to associates and subsidiaries
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC
Interest expenses given to associates and subsidiaries 102.207 - 26.820 -
Total 102.207 - 26.820 -
2.3 Information on interest expenses given to securities issued
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
TL FC TL FC

Interest expenses on securities issued 141.689 200.887

Total 141.689 200.887
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I11. Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments (continued)

2. Information on interest expenses (continued)
2.4 Information on interest expenses given to money market and relevant transactions
30 June 2025 30 June 2024

TL FC TL FC
Interest expenses from Takasbank and relevant transactions 13.739 - 22,680
Interest expenses from reverse repo transactions 87.255 16 7.205 6
Total 100.994 16  29.885 6
Information on dividend income
None.
Information on trading profit/(loss) (Net)

30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Profit 6.977.212 7.831.986
Income From Capital Market Transactions 131.781 86.734
Income From Derivative Financial Transactions 3.904.673 5.135.728
Foreign Exchange Gains 2.940.758 2.609.524
Loss (-) 7.414.198 7.296.442
Loss from Capital Market Transactions 18.107 7.460
Loss from Derivative Financial Transactions 4.070.992 4.967.446
Foreign Exchange Loss 3.325.099 2.321.536
Trading profit/(loss), net (436.986) 535.544

Explanations on other operating income

As of 30 June 2025. the Bank has total other operating income amounting to TL 41.692. The amount of TL
30.915 is arising from issued securities, TL 7.697 is arising from prior period adjustments and TL 3.080 from
other (30 June 2024: TL 1.209 sale of motor vehicles and TL 563 from other).
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

111 Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments (continued)
Provision expenses related to loans and other receivables of the Bank

In accordance with the authorisation on 21 February 2022 from BRSA, the Bank calculates its general loan
provisions within the scope of the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation, not with the expected

credit losses under TFRS 9.

30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Specific provisions
12 month expected credit loss
Significant increase in credit risk
Non-performing loans
General provisions
Impairment on marketable securities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Impairment on investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint
ventures
Associates
Subsidiaries
Joint ventures
Other

135.661 76.588

Total 135.661 76.588

75



IV.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)

Information related to other operating expenses

30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Provision for employment termination benefits 2.130 889
Bank social aid fund deficit provision - -
Impairment Expenses of Property. Plant and Equipment - -
Depreciation Expenses of Property, Plant and Equipment 14.909 6.226
Impairment Expenses of Intangible Assets - -
Goodwill Impairment Expenses - 2
Amortization Expenses of Intangible Assets 9.049 2.846
Impairment Expenses of Equity Participations accounted for
using the Equity Method ; - -
Impairment Expenses of Assets Held for Sale - -
Depreciation Expenses of Assets Held for Sale - -
Impairment Expenses of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations - -
Other Operating Expenses 70.291 38.316
Leases from TFRS 16 Exemptions 338 3.738
Maintenance and repair expenses 801 628
Advertisement and promotion expenses 2.713 1.156
Other 06.439 32.824
Loss on Sales of Assets - -
Other 16.513 13.652
Total 112.892 61.929

As of 30 June 2025, other expenses include audit and consultancy fee amounting to TL 11.372, adjustments for retained earnings
amounting to TL 4.538 and other amounting to TL 603. In addition, other operating expenses include taxes, duties and charges
amounting to TL 5.096, communication expenses amounting to TL 12.669, computer equipment costs amounting to TL 30.903,
depreciation and amortisation charges amounting to TL 10.533 and other amounting to TL 7.238 (30 June 2024: Audit and consultancy
fee amounting to TL 5.015 and prior period adjustments amounting to TL 8.429 and other amounting to TL 208. Other operating
expenses include computer equipment costs amounting to TL 14,220, communication expenses amounting to TL 7.185, taxes, duties

and charges amounting to TL 4.604 and other aperating expenses amounting to TL 6.815).
Information on income/(expense) from continuing and discontinued operations before tax

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank’s profit before tax from continuing operations is amounting to TL 748.917 (30
June 2024: TL 917.646). The Bank has no discontinued operations.

Information on tax provision of continuing and discontinued operations

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has current period tax expense from continuing operations amounting to TL
284.635 (30 June 2024: TL 276.441). The Bank has no discontinued operations.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)

Information and explanations on operating profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations

As of 30 June 2025, the Bank has profit before tax from continuing operations amounting to TL 748.917 (30
June 2024: TL 917.646). The Bank has current period tax expense from continuing operations amounting to
TL 284.635 (30 June 2024: TL 276.441). As of 30 June 2025, profit for the period amounting to TL 464.282

(30 June 2024: TL 641.205).

Information profit/loss for the period

amount and frequency of the figures of the income and expense stemming

Explanation on the quality,
if necessary to understand the performance of the Bank for the

from ordinary banking operations,
current period

None.

. Explanations on the changes in the estimations regarding the figures on the financial statements, if there

is a possibility that the profit and loss for the current or the following periods will be impacted

None.
If Other Items in the Profit or Loss Statement Exceed 10% of the Profit or Loss Statement Total, Sub-
Accounts Constituting At Least 20% of These Items

Other items included in the statement of profit or loss do not exceed 10% of total amount of statement of profit
or loss.

Explanations and notes related to statement of changes in equity

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Explanations and notes related to statement of cash flows

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
VII.  Explanations and notes related to risk group that the Bank belongs to

1. Information on the volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding loan
and deposit transactions and profit and loss of the period

a) Information on loans to the risk group that the Bank belongs to

Current period

Investments in associates,
subsidiaries and joint

Other Real and Legal
Persons that have been
included in the Risk

Direct and indirect
shareholders of the

Bank’s Risk Group ventures Bank Group
Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash Cash  Non-cash
Loans
Balance at the beginning of the period 480 7.635.355 4.054 - 3.598
Balance at the end of the period 4.080 7.715.488 3.434 - 3.390
Interest and Commission Income Received 23 748.400 58 - 35

Prior period

Investments in
associates, subsidiaries

Bank’s Risk Group and joint ventures

Other Real and Legal
Persons that have been
included in the Risk
Group

Direct and indirect
shareholders of the
Bank

Cash Non-cash

Cash Non-cash Cash  Non-cash

Loans

Balance at the beginning of the period - 2.551.259 300 - 3.598
Balance at the end of the period 480 7.635.355 4.054 - 3.598
Interest and Commission Income Received - 932,504 20 - 72

2. Information on forward and option agreements and other similar agreements made with the Bank’s risk

group
Investments in Other Real and Legal
associates, Direct and indirect  Persons that have been
subsidiaries and  shareholders of the included in the Risk
Bank’s Risk Group joint ventures Bank Group
Current Prior Current Prior  Current Prior
period period period period period period
Derivatives

Balance at the beginning of the period - -
Balance at the end of the period - -
Total profit/loss - -

30.696.187 18.053.982 - -
19.986.575 30.696.187 - =
156.060 249412 - 5
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
VII. Explanations and notes related to risk group that the Bank belongs to (continued)
3. Information on issued securities with the Bank’s risk group
As of 30 June 2025, the amount of securities issued by the Group and purchased by Domino Europue Ltd., the
related party, is amounting to USD 166.600 (31 December 2024: USD 11 6.600).

4. Information on the funds/ repurchase agreements (“Repos™) realised with the Bank’s risk group

As of 30 June 2025, the total amount of of funds/ repurchase agreements and transfers and relevant transactions
realised with the related parties is amounting to TL 1.194.775 (31 December 2024: TL 777.325).

Key management compensation

As of 30 June 2025, benefits provided to the Bank’s key management personnel is amounting to TL 28.660
(30 June 2024: TL 6.479).

SECTION SIX

Other Explanations
Explanations and notes related to domestic, foreign, off-shore branches and foreign representatives of

the Bank
The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communique on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Explanations and notes related to events after the reporting period

None.
SECTION SEVEN

EXPLANATIONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

L

1L

The relevant matters disclosed on independent auditor’s review report

The unconsolidated financial statements and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements as of and for the
interim period ended 30 June 2025 have been audited by Giireli Yeminli Mali Miisavirlik ve Bagimsiz Denetim
Hizmetleri Anonim Sirketi. The independent auditor’s review report dated 5 August 2025 is presented

preceding the unconsolidated financial statements.

Explanations and notes prepared by independent auditors

None.
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SECTION EIGHT
EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

Assesment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager on the Interim
Operations and Evaluation Regarding Subsequent Periods

Message from the Chairman of the Board

The global economic environment is fraught with increasing uncertainty. US President Trump's statements on
tariffs have significantly increased uncertainty stemming from trade policies. The relevant situation may
adversely affect international trade flows and supply chains. Although headline inflation rates declined in April
and May due to falling commodity prices, energy price increases caused by geopolitical tensions in June had

a negative impact on inflation.

Domestic demand remains the main driver of economic growth in Tiirkiye. The economy grew by 2.0% year-
on-year and 1.0% quarter-on-quarter in the first quarter of the year. However, economic activity slowed in the
second quarter due to tighter financial conditions. Thus, growth is expected to be around 3.0% for the year
2025. The downward trend in inflation continued in the first half of the year. Annual inflation, which stood at
44.4% at the end of 2024, declined to 35.0% as of June. With the maintenance of a tight monetary policy
stance, inflation is projected to remain within the Central Bank of Tiirkiye’s (the “CBRT”) forecast range by
year-end.

While credit growth in the banking sector did not slow down, the non-performing loan ratio remained low at
2.1%. and the capital adequacy ratio continued to remain above the legal limit. The Currency-Protected
Deposit (“KKM™) stock declined to USD 13.1 billion as of July 11, and its share in total deposits fell to 2.3%
from its peak level. Although the volatility experienced in the second quarter created challenging conditions
for the banking sector, macro-financial stability was maintained thanks to the measures realised. The interest
rate reduction process that will begin in the third quarter may create a more favorable environment for the
sector in terms of credit growth, asset quality, and profitability. In the long term, low inflation and increased
predictability will support the growth potential of the financial sector.

Destek Yatirim Bankasi focused on credit and treasury operations with corporate customers in the second

quarter of 2025. The Bank's loans account for approximately 69% of its assets, and there are no overdue loan
receivables. Foreign currency bond issuances continued in the seco nd quarter of 2025, contributing to our asset

growth target with a solid financial structure.
I would like to indicate my sincere thanks all our valuable stakeholders, business partners, members of the
board, managers and employees with whom we walked on our journey.

Altun¢ KUMOVA
Chairman of the Board
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EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT (continued)

Assesment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager on the Interim
Operations and Evaluation Regarding Subsequent Periods (continued)

Dear Stakeholders,

As of 30 June 2025, the assets of Destek Yatirim Bankasi realised as amounting to TL 26.9 billion. The cash
loans considered as TL 18.6 billion, and the balance of the letter of guarantees that Destek Yatirim Bankasi
provided is amounting to TL 6.5 billion. In addition, the securities portfolio amounted to TL 3.89 billion at

the end of the second quarter of 2025, representing 14.46% of total assets.
By the end of June 2025, the total amount of foreign currency-denominated borrowings from domestic and

foreign banks realised as TL 9.2 billion. Furthermore, the total amount of issued bonds in foreign capital
markets amounted to USD 176.6 million. Issuances were made in domestic capital markets through asset-

backed securities, financing bonds, and variable-rate financial instruments.

At the end of the second quarter of 2025, our Bank's capital adequacy ratio is realised at 19.18%. On the other
hand, the Bank's profit after tax provisions amounted to TL 464.3 million. Accordingly. average return on
equity (on an annual basis) was realised as 30.9%.

ntend to launch foreign trade transactions and expand our correspondent

In the subsequent months, we i
omers, we will

banking network. In addition to the cash and non-cash loans we provide to our corporate cust
continue to increase the volume of spot and forward foreign exchange transactions. We are planning

innovations and breakthroughs in the private banking services.

Ozgiir Akayoglu

General Manager
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